NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
THE 19" DAY OF JANUARY, 2016

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN the Board of Education of Kenilworth School District Number 38, Cook County,
Ilinois, will hold a Regular Meeting on the 19" day of January, 2016 at 5:30 o’clock p.m., for the Closed Session
meeting in Room 252 and at 7:30 o’clock p.m. for the Open Session in the Library Technology Center of The Joseph
Sears School, 542 Abbotsford Road, Kenilworth, Illinois.

AGENDA
Room 252 (Closed Session — 5:30 p.m.)
L. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
Present  Absent Present Absent
Scott Wallace Melinda Kelly
Suzanne Nelson Timothy Kollar
Danielle Boros Stacey Van Metre

Donna Keller

I1. CLOSED SESSION TO CONSIDER INFORMATION REGARDING SPECIFIC EMPLOYEE
MATTERS, FINANCIAL MATTERS AND PENDING OR PROBABLE LITIGATION, AND
PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR USE OF THE PUBLIC BODY

Library Technology Center (Open Session — 7:30 p.m.)

II1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Present Absent Present Absent
Scott Wallace Melinda Kelly
Suzanne Nelson Timothy Kollar
Danielle Boros Stacey Van Metre

Donna Keller

Iv. PUBLIC COMMENT (See posted Rules of Public Comment)

V. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS
A. Freedom of Information Act Requests
B. Report from the Superintendent
> Discussion of the 2016-2017 School Year Calendar
> Discussion of the Spring Community Forum
> Discussion of Board Policy Revisions
> Discussion on the Delivery of Board Packet Materials
B. Report from the Chief School Business Officer
> Accounts Payable Review
> Update on January Financial and Investment Reports
> Update on Infinite Visions
> Review of New Financial Reports
C. Report from the Principal
> Review of the Education Committee Meeting
D. Report from the Director of Student Services
> No Report

VI CONSENT AGENDA



VIL

VIII.

IX.

X.

XI.

QmmoUOw>

Approval of Minutes of the December 14, 2015, Regular Meeting and Closed Session

Approval of Financial Report for December 2015

Approval of Investment Reports for December 2015

Approval of Accounts Payable for December 15, 2015 to January 19, 2016

Approval of Certified Employee Request for Resignation

Approval of Certified Employee Request for Retirement

Approval of Board Policy Revisions: 2:160 School Board - Board Attorney; 2:260 School Board
Uniform Grievance Procedure; 4:50 Operational Services — Payment Procedures; 5:50 Personnel —
Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace; 5:170 General Personnel — Copyright Compliance; 5:270
Educational Support Personnel — Employment At-Will Compensation and Assignment; 5:290
Educational Support Personnel — Employment Termination and Suspensions, 7:10 Students — Equal
Educational Opportunities,, 7:40 Students — Non-Public School Students, Including Parochial and
Home-Schooled Students; 7:260 Students — Exemption from Physical Activity, 7:310 Students —
Restrictions on Publications, 7:325 Students — Student Fundraising Activities and 8:80 Community
Relations — Gifts to the District

Approval of New Board Policy Related Administrative Procedure: 5:170 AP4 Administrative
Procedure - Designation of Digital Millennium Copyright Act (DMCA) Agent Registration Process
Facility Management and Building Programs

OLD BUSINESS
A. Potential Action to Approve the 2016-2017 School Year Calendar
B. Discussion of the 2015-2016 School Climate Survey
C. Board Committee Reports including Comments and Questions

NEW BUSINESS
A. Discussion of the Administrative Restructure

OTHER BUSINESS

PUBLIC COMMENT (See attached Rules of Public Comment)

ADJOURNMENT

Dated the 14" day of January, 2016.

Chike Erokwu
Secretary, Board of Education
Kenilworth School District No. 38



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38

To:  Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
From: Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official/FOIA Officer
Date: January 19, 2016

Re:  Freedom of Information Act Requests

The following Freedom of Information Act Request has been received and responded to
since the last Regular Board of Education meeting:

From Ms. Patty Birk on December 29, 2015
The request was for the following on behalf of Ms. Patty Birk:

1. Does your school district employ the use of a risk manager or insurance
consultant for the procurement of the school district's insurance? (Yes/No)

2. If the answer to question #1 is "Yes", then please provide the following
information regarding the insurance consultant: Risk Manager or Human
Resources/Insurance

* Consulting Firm Name

* Annual Cost of the Risk Manager or Human Resources/Insurance
Consulting Firm Name

* Expiration Date of the Contract

* A Copy of the current Risk Management or Human
Resources/Insurance Consulting Firm Agreement with the School
District

3. What Insurance Carrier/Insurance Trust or Insurance Pooling Arrangement
currently insures the District?

4. What is the annual insurance premium paid by the district? Please identify by the
following two categories?
* Commercial Property, Liability, Automobile, Inland Marine and
Umbrella

*  Workers Compensation

The response was provided on January 7, 2016. There were no legal fees incurred. It
required time on the part of myself to research all appropriate documents requested.

DR.CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL MSs. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES

542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 phone: 847.256.5006 fax: 847.256.4418 www kenilworth38.org




THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38

From Dr. Polikoff from University of Southern California on January 5, 2016
The request was for the following on behalf of the University of Southern California:

A list of mathematics and science textbooks used (title and publisher),
The grade each textbook is used,

Which version of the book is used (e.g. Illinois, national, Common Core),
And the year the textbook was first used (e.g., 2004-05)

Ll S

The response was provided on January 12, 2016. The response was developed in
consultation with our legal counsel, Heidi Katz. It required time on the part of Mrs.
Wallace and myself to research all appropriate documents requested.

DR.CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL MSs. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES

542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 phone: 847.256.5006 fax: 847.256.4418 www kenilworth38.org




THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38

To:  Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
From: Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official
Date: January 19, 2016

Re:  Superintendent’s Report

Discussion and Potential Action to Approve the 2016-2017 School Year Calendar
Attached to this report is the proposed calendar for The Joseph Sears School 2016-2017
school year as discussed at the December 14t Board meeting. Please note the
Parent/Teacher Conferences scheduled for March 3 will be subject to revision. This
will be determined after the review of the Parent/ Teacher Conferences for the current
school year.

Discussion of the Spring Community Forum

The Administrative Leadership Team has been collaborating on the development of the
Strategic Plan process for the 2016-2017 school year. It is our goal to have this plan in
place for the spring community forum. We are tentatively looking at the evening of the
Thursday, April 28, 2016. This is also the evening Student Art Exhibit. We thought this
would be an excellent opportunity to showcase the artistic abilities of our students to the
greater community.

Discussion of and Potential Action to Board Policy Revisions

At the Personnel Committee meeting on January 11, 2016, the committee convened to
discuss the suggested Board policy revisions. Attached to this report you will find the
redline copy of the policies reflecting the revisions of the Committee as well as the final
revised copy.

Discussion on the Delivery of Board Packet Materials

In efforts to promote a green environment, the Board packet materials have been issued
electronically. However, is has been recently suggested that we revisit the option of
providing a printed copy for the Board members.

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate
to contact me.

DR.CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL MSs. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES

542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 phone: 847.256.5006 fax: 847.256.4418 www kenilworth38.org



Kenilworth School District No. 38
Draft 2016-2017 School Year Calendar

AUGUST No School - Teachers’ Institute
Teachers’ Institute - Meet and Greet
First Day of Student Attendance -Half Day of School for Kindergarten through 8"
Grades (8:20 a.m.—11:30 a.m.) — Teachers’ Institute in the afternoon

SEPTEMBER No School — Labor Day Holiday
Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.)
First Day of Junior Kindergarten

OCTOBER No School — Local School Holiday
No School — Columbus Day Holiday
No School — Teachers’ Institute
No School — Local School Holiday
Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.)
Student Dismissal at 12:05 p.m. - Parent/Teacher Conferences (2:00-9:00 p.m.)
No School — Parent/Teacher Conferences (8:00 a.m.-3:00 p.m.)

NOVEMBER No School — Thanksgiving Break
Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.)

DECEMBER No School — Winter Break

JANUARY No School — Winter Break
Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.) - School Resumes
No School — Martin Luther King, Jr. Day Holiday

FEBRUARY No School — Teachers’ Institute Day
No School — Presidents’ Day Holiday
Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.)

No School - Parent/Teacher Conferences (8:00 a.m. — 3:00 p.m.)*
No School — Spring Break

Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.)- School Resumes
No School - Local School Holiday

29 No School — Memorial Day Holiday
30 Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.)

8 Eighth Grade Graduation (5:00 p.m.)
9 Last Day of School (8:20 a.m.—12:05 p.m.)- Only if no Emergency Days are Used
12-16  Emergency Days to be Used as Required

*Parent/Teacher Conferences subject to revision.

Discussed by the Board of Education December 14, 2015




THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DIsTRICT No. 38
To:  Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
From: Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official
Date: January 19, 2016

Re:  Chief School Business Official Report

Accounts Payable Review

The following section will highlight any bills that are beyond the regular monthly bills

list or require an explanation:

Explanation: New District Website (Finalsite)

Active Intemet Technologies, LLC

Check Group:
Prof & Tech Website 10 INV0009621 10.0000.2330.310.00.000 $7,500.00
1112016 Prof and Tech
Check # 133206
PO/nvoiceTotal: $7,500.00
Vendor Total: $7,500.00
Explanation: Consultant
Jessica Jones JONES1
Check Group: 01/13/16
Prof and Tech 10 1537-2 10.0000.2330.310.00.000 $3,322.50
1/8/2016 Prof and Tech
Check #: 133252
POfInvoiceTotal: $3,322.50
Vendor Total: $3,322.50
Explanation: Special Education Cooperative
No Suburban Special Education District NSSED
Check Group:
Fees Other GOV NSSED 10 161005 10.0000.4120.310.00.000 $8,261.55
1/12/2018 Fees Other Gov NSSED
Spec Program Tuition 10 161055 10.0000.4120.600.00.000 $4,338.00
1/12/2016 Spec Program Tuttion
Spec Program Tuition 10 161085 10.0000.4120.600.00.000 $125,719.92
1/12/2016 Spec Program Tultion
Check #: 133286
POfInvoiceTotal: $138,319.47
Vendor Totak $138,319.47

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL Ms. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES

542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 phone: 847.256.5006 fax: 847.256.4418 www kenilworth38.org



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38

Explanation: Special Education Technology Purchase

SirsiDynix SIRSIDYNI
X

Check Group:
SCRIDYNEX 10 INVMT028687 10.0000.2222.300.01.000 $10.240.15
1/7/2016 SCRI DYNEX

Check #: 133287
POfInvoiceTotal: $10,249.15

Vendor Total: $10.249.15
Explanation: New Financial Software Purchase
Tyler Technologies, Inc TYLERTEC
HN
Check Group:
Computer Software 10 025-141978 10.0000.2223.470.00.000 $2,800.00
1/7/2018 Computer Software
Computer Software 10 025-142525 10.0000.2223.470.00.000 $4.052.42
1/8/2018 Computer Software
Computer Software 10 025-144561 10.0000.2223.470.00.000 $2.472.31
12/31/2015 Computer Software
Check #: 133200
POlInvoiceTotal: $0.324.73
Vendor Totak $0.324.73

Update on January Financials and Investment Reports
Due to the timing of the February 8th Board meeting, no financial reports will be
presented. January and February financial reports will be presented in March.

Update on Infinite Visions

The Business Office successfully processed its first payroll under the new system. We
have already received a lot of positive feedback from the faculty and staff regarding the
new software. Additionally, I would like to thank both Angela and Trish for working
hard to ensure a successful transition to the new system. Many hours were spent training
and importing data into the software and their efforts are greatly appreciated.

Review of New Financial Reports

Overall, the financial and investment reports have not changed. The formatting has
changed slightly. Therefore, I would like to take a few minutes to review each of the
reports.

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate
to contact me.

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL Ms. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES

542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 phone: 847.256.5006 fax: 847.256.4418 www kenilworth38.org




ENROLLMENT REPORT 2015-2016

January 14, 2016

Historical Comparison |
Beginning Beginning Enrollment Enrollment for Kasarda Fall 2015
2013-2014 2014-2015 Close of 2015-2016 December 2014 Census Numbers
Grade School Year School Year School Year as of Projections
(08-28-13) (08-18-14) (2014-2015) 01-14-16 2015-2016
JK 7 12 13 10 NA 21
K 43 43 44 39 41/46/50 24
1 50 46 45 (46)* 45 43/45/47 27
2 49 51 51 51 (52)* 45/47/49 39
3 66 50 52 52 48/50/52 45
4 47 67 65 (66)* 57 47/49/51 43
5 67 42 42 66 63/65/67 62
6 60 67 68 43(44)* 40/42/44 52
7 75 56 56 71 66/68/70 56
8 51 74* 71 (73)* 57 (58)* 55/55/57 69
Total 518 508 507 (511)* 491 (494)* 448/467/487 438
2015-2016 ENROLLMENT SUMMARY WITH CLASS SECTIONS
School JK K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Total
The Joseph Sears School 10 39 45 51 52 57 66 43 71 57 491
No. of Current Sections 1 2 3 3 3 3 4 19
No. Advisory Sections 4 5 5 14

* Includes alternate student placement

H:\2015-2016\Enroliment Report

01-14-16




Kenilworth School District No. 38

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
THE 14TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015

The meeting was called to order by President Scott Wallace at 6:02 p.m. Upon Roll Call, the following
board members answered as being present: Mr. Scott Wallace, Mrs. Suzanne Nelson, Mr. Timothy
Kollar, Mrs. Melinda Kelly, Mrs. Donna Keller, Mrs. Danielle Boros and Mrs. Stacey Van Metre.

Also in attendance were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/ CSBO

Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal

Ms. Julia Jones, Director of Student Services

Mr. Chike Erokwu, Communication Coordinator

Mr. Scott Wallace entertained a motion to go into Closed Session.

CLOSED SESSION TO CONSIDER INFORMATION REGARDING SPECIFIC EMPLOYEE
MATTERS, PENDING OR PROBABLE LITIGATION AND PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL
PROPERTY FOR USE OF THE PUBLIC BODY

Mprs. Suzanne Nelson moved, seconded by Mrs. Stacey Van Metre, to go into Closed Session at 6:03 p.m. to
consider Information Regarding Specific Employee Matters, Pending or Probable Litigation and Purchase or Lease
of Real Property for use of the Public Body.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Stacey M. Van Metre
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mr. Timothy Kollar
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Melinda Kelly

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0 with one member absent.

The Board entered Closed Session at 6:03 p.m.

The Board returned to Open Session at 7:48 p.m.

Upon Roll Call, the following board members answered as being present: Mr. Scott Wallace, Mrs.
Suzanne Nelson, Mrs. Danielle Boros, Mr. Timothy Kollar, Mrs. Melinda Kelly, Mrs. Donna Keller and
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre.

Also in attendance were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/ CSBO

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
December 14, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Page 1 of 6



Kenilworth School District No. 38

Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal

Ms. Julia Jones, Director of Student Services;

Mr. Chike Erokwu, Communication Coordinator
Mrs. Allison Drew, Videographer

Community Members: Michele Kane, Eileen Madigan

Faculty: Mrs. Enza Fox, Megan Panje, Jennifer Arra, Caryn Friedman, Kim Goff, Bernadette Slovitt,
Rachael Jennings, Kathleen Lowell, Allison Lopuszynski

PUBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Scott Wallace invited public comment. There was none.

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS

Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Requests - There were no FOIA requests submitted to the District
since the last Board meeting.

Report from the Superintendent - Dr. LeRoy discussed the 2016-2017 school year calendar and
presented a draft for board members to review. Dr. LeRoy said the calendar attempted to mirror historic
start and stop dates of New Trier High School. Dr. LeRoy said this calendar might not mirror New
Trier’s calendar due to due to the ongoing construction at the high school campus.

Since there were still a number of issues with the calendar that need to be finalized, including the
parent/teacher conference schedule, Mr. Wallace noted that the approval of the 2015-2016 calendar
would be removed from the agenda.

Dr. LeRoy also presented the revised 2015-2016 Board of Education meeting schedule. The revised
schedule includes a full board meeting on January 19, 2016.

Dr. LeRoy presented revisions of board policies to the board for review. After brief board discussion, Mr.
Wallace noted that the revisions would be vetted through the Personnel Committee in January before
coming to the full board for a vote during the next board meeting.

Report from the Chief School Business Officer - Dr. LeRoy summarized the findings of the fiscal year
15 financial audit. The audit found that the District is operating in compliance with standard accounting
practices. The audit provided three recommendations on how the District could improve. Dr. LeRoy said
that all three recommendations would be taken into account when the District adopts its new financial
software.

Dr. LeRoy gave an update on the search for an architectural services provider firm. The Building and
Finance Committee narrowed the candidates down to three and conducted interviews during a meeting
on Dec. 7. Based upon their experience, interviews and references, the Committee endorsed DLA
Architects as the recommended architectural services provider. Mrs. Kelly added that she was
particularly impressed with DLA’s experience incorporating 21st century learning principals and
practices into design work. Dr. LeRoy explained that the District’s legal counsel would work with DLA
to come up with a fee structure and a contract.

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
December 14, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Page 2 of 6



Kenilworth School District No. 38

Dr. LeRoy led a discussion about the District’s use of the Park District’s Village House. Dr. LeRoy said
the District does not have a formal agreement in place with the Park District for use of the Village House.
Board members discussed the District’s terms of usage, specifically as they relate to large maintenance
and expenditures costs.

Report from the Principal - Mrs. Wallace gave a video presentation that showcased the District’s science
curriculum.

Mrs. Wallace updated the Board on PARCC scores. Sears had less than 85% of students take the test.
Mrs. Wallace said Sears PARCC scores were in line with or exceeding township averages.

Mrs. Wallace discussed the use of test data to inform educational practices. Mrs. Wallace said the use of a
statistics/ data consultant would allow administrators to better understand and interpret data. Mrs.
Wallace said she has begun interviewing data consultants that have been used by neighboring districts.

Mrs. Wallace discussed the progress made by the Instructional Facilitator. Mrs. Wallace said the she has
received positive informal feedback on the Instructional Facilitator position and that Mrs. Panje has been
well received by the faculty.

Report from the Director of Student Services - Ms. Jones gave an update on the work the Student
Services team has done in redefining language and concepts used to identify key terms. Board members

emphasized the importance of clearly defining these terms so that they are easy to understand.

Ms. Jones also gave the Board a brief update on the status of District 109’s withdrawal attempt from
NSSED.

CONSENT AGENDA

Mr. Wallace asked if there were any questions regarding the Consent Agenda. Mr. Wallace called for the
removal of two items on the agenda related to the approval of board policies. The items were removed
from the Consent Agenda by unanimous consent. Mrs. Suzanne Nelson noted an error in the Open
Session minutes, which specified the board endorsed class size minimums instead of class size
maximums. Mr. Wallace asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as amended.

Mrs. Stacey Van Metre moved to approve the Consent Agenda to include approval for: Amended Minutes of the
November 16, 2015 Regular Meeting and Closed Session; Approval of Financial Report for November 2015;
Approval of Investment Reports for November 2015; Approval of Accounts Payable for November 17, 2015 to
December 14, 2015; Destruction of Closed Session Recordings for January 2014, April 2014, May 2014 and June
2014; Approval of Two Certified Employee Requests for Retirement and/or Resignation; Approval to Hire Long
Term Substitute, Ms. Marguerite Tuten. The motion was seconded by Mrs. Donna Keller.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre
Mrs. Danielle Boros

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
December 14, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Page 3 of 6



Kenilworth School District No. 38

Mr. Timothy Kollar
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Melinda Kelly

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

OLD BUSINESS

Potential Action to Approve Recommendation for Architectural Services to DLA Architects
Mr. Tim Kollar moved, seconded by Mrs. Melinda Kelly, to approve the recommendation to hire DLA Architects

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mr. Timothy Kollar
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Melinda Kelly

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

Discussion of the FY16 School Climate Survey - Mr. Wallace gave an overview on the need to revise
the school climate survey. Mrs. Keller, who has a marketing background, gave a presentation on best
practices regarding school climate surveys. Mrs. Keller presented board members with a draft of
questions to be used in the survey and members discussed the specifics of what they would like to see in
the survey’s implementation.

Discussion of and Potential Endorsement of District Website Provider - Mr. Erokwu provided board
members with an update on the strategic plan initiatives related to the District website. Mr. Erokwu
discussed a comparative analysis of two website providers: Finalsite and Campus Suite. The
comparative analysis showed Finalsite to be the superior website provider. After discussion, the Board
endorsed Finalsite as the District’s website provider. Mr. Erokwu was asked to work with Finalsite on
the terms and pricing of the contract.

Board Committee Results including Comments and Questions - Mrs. Kelly gave a summary of the
most recent Building and Finance Committee meeting. Mrs. Nelson said she would like to have the
District’s architectural firm, DLA Architects, present to the board at the next board meeting.

NEW BUSINESS

Potential Action to Accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Audit:
Mr. Tim Kollar moved, seconded by Mrs. Stacey Van Metre, to approve the 2015 Fiscal Year 2015 Audit.

Roll Call:

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
December 14, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Page 4 of 6



Kenilworth School District No. 38

Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Scott Wallace

Mrs. Suzanne Nelson

Mrs. Stacey Van Metre

Mrs. Danielle Boros

Mr. Timothy Kollar

Mrs. Donna Keller

Mrs. Melinda Kelly

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

Potential Action to Approve the 2016-2017 School Year Calendar - This motion was tabled for
discussion at the next board meeting.

Potential Action to Approve the 2015-2016 Revised Board of Education Meeting Schedule:

Mr. Tim Kollar moved, seconded by Mrs. Stacey Van Metre, to approve the 2015-2016 Revised Board of Education
Meeting Schedule.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mr. Timothy Kollar
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Melinda Kelly

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Wallace invited public comment. Mrs. Eileen Madigan wished Merry Christmas to board members
and school administrators.

OTHER BUSINESS

There was none.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business Mr. Wallace entertained a motion to adjourn.
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre moved, seconded by Mrs. Melinda Kelly, to adjourn the meeting at 10:12 p.m.

The motion carried with all yeses.

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
December 14, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Page 5 of 6



Kenilworth School District No. 38

Attest for Distribution:
Chike Erokwu, Secretary

Approved:

Scott Wallace, President

ATTEST:
Chike Erokwu, Secretary

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
December 14, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Page 6 of 6



Summary Accounts Payable December 15th to January 19th

10. Educational Fund

20. Operations & Maint Fund
30. Bond & Interest Fund

40. Transportation Fund

50. Municipal Retirement Fund
60. Site & Construction

70. Working Cash Fund

80. Tort Fund

90. Life Safety Fund

Total A/P Disbursements

A/P Check Numbers

Direct A/P Deposit

Void Check Numbers

10. Educational Fund

20. Operations & Maint Fund

50. Municipal Retirement Fund

Total Payroll Disbursements

Total Cash Disbursements

Date:1/15/16

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable

Transfer of Interest

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable

133203-133304

Submitted by:
Approved by:

0
0

Payroll
Payroll

Payroll

$227,332.08
$23,457.46
$0.00
$5,695.66
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$125.00
$0.00

$256,610.20

$569,206.92
$7,531.22
$7,841.06

$584,579.20

$841,189.40

Trish Culhane




Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
22nd Century Media LLC 22NDCENT
UR
Check Group:
Board Purchased Service 10 00130563 10.0000.2310.300.00.000 $152.85
1/11/2016 Board Purchased Service
Check #: 133203
PO/InvoiceTotal: $152.85
Vendor Total: $152.85
ABM Janitorial Midwest ABM
Check Group:
Repair and Maint Service 10 8852077 20.0000.2540.323.00.000 $78.62
12/4/2015 Repair and Maint Service
Check #: 133204
PO/InvoiceTotal: $78.62
Vendor Total: $78.62
ACTFL ACTFL
Check Group:
Admin Dues and Fees 10 Membership Dues 10.0000.2321.640.00.000 $89.00
1/8/2016 Admin Dues and Fees
Check #: 133205
PO/InvoiceTotal: $89.00
Vendor Total: $89.00
Active Internet Technologies, LLC
Check Group:
Prof & Tech Website 10 INV0009621 10.0000.2330.310.00.000 $7,500.00
1/1/2016 Prof and Tech
Check #: 133206
PO/InvoiceTotal: $7,500.00
Vendor Total: $7,500.00
ADVANCED DISPOSAL-NORTHBROOK- T4 ADVDISPO
S
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 1



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Check Group:
Bldg Service Supplies 0 T400001812830  20.0000.2540.420.00.000 $1,100.00
12/31/2015 Bldg Service Supplies
Check #: 133207
PO/InvoiceTotal: $1,100.00
Vendor Total: $1,100.00
All Covered ALLCOVER
ED
Check Group:
All Covered 0 705123 10.0000.2225.300.02.000 $4,379.00
1/7/2016 All Covered
Check #: 133208
PO/InvoiceTotal: $4,379.00
Vendor Total: $4,379.00
Alltown Bus Service ALLTOWN
BUS
Check Group:
Field Trip Bus 0 137287 40.0000.2550.335.00.000 $470.00
1/7/2016 Field Trips
Check #: 133209
PO/InvoiceTotal: $470.00
Vendor Total: $470.00
Amazon/GE Money Bank AMAZONC
oM
Check Group:
General Supplies 0 024249496090 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $97.72
12/7/2015 General Supplies
Check #: 133210
PO/InvoiceTotal: $97.72
Vendor Total: $97.72
American Assoc. of Teachers of French
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 2



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Check Group:
French Material & Supplies 01/01-12/31/16 10.0000.1120.410.18.000 $60.00
1/11/2016 French Material & Supplies
Check #: 133211
PO/InvoiceTotal: $60.00
Vendor Total: $60.00
Apple Computer Inc APPLE
Check Group:
Teachers Computer Buy 4363320373 10.0000.0196.000.00.000 $1,509.00
12/7/2015 Teachers Computer Buy
Check #: 133212
Check Group: 01/13/16
INV # 559.80 4366212776 10.0000.1120.410.09.000 $559.80
12/4/2015 Science Supplies
Check #: 133213
Check Group:
Teachers Computer Buy/LeBris 4366276091 10.0000.0196.000.00.000 $183.00
1/8/2016 Teachers Computer Buy
Tech Material & Supplies 4369667442 10.0000.2225.400.00.000 $99.00
12/25/2015 Tech Material & Supplies
Tech Material & Supplies 4369915814 10.0000.2225.400.00.000 $169.00
12/6/2015 Tech Material & Supplies
Check #: 133212
PO/InvoiceTotal: $2,519.80
Vendor Total: $2,519.80
Assoc of School Business Officials Int ASBO
Check Group:
Admin Dues and Fees MBR 814001 10.0000.2321.640.00.000 $219.00
12/15/2015 Admin Dues and Fees
Check #: 133214
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 3



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
PO/InvoiceTotal: $219.00
Vendor Total: $219.00
AT&T ATTCAROL
S
Check Group:
Communication 10 11/29-12/28 20.0000.2540.340.00.000 $657.25
1/13/2016 Communication
Communication 10 6254820301 20.0000.2540.340.00.000 $897.84
1/8/2016 Communication

Check #: 133215

PO/InvoiceTotal: $1,555.09
Vendor Total: $1,555.09
AT&T GA ATTGA
Check Group:
Long Distance 10 0209707535001-1 20.0000.2540.340.00.000 $23.93
1/27
1/2/2016 Communication
Communication 10 12/27/15 20.0000.2540.340.00.000 $22.47
1/8/2016 Communication
Check #: 133216
PO/InvoiceTotal: $46.40
Vendor Total: $46.40
Autism Shop.Com
Check Group:
General Supplies 10 21623 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $89.75
1/5/2016 General Supplies
Check #: 133217
PO/InvoiceTotal: $89.75
Vendor Total: $89.75
Blaine Ray Workshops, Inc. BLAINERA
Y

Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 4



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Check Group:
Foreign Language Supplies 0 10777 10.0000.1120.410.18.000 $198.00
1/5/2016 French Material & Supplies
Check #: 133218
PO/InvoiceTotal: $198.00
Vendor Total: $198.00
Bob's Dairy Service BOBSDAIR
Y
Check Group:
Lunch Expense 0 195933 10.0000.2560.490.01.000 $190.46
1/7/2016 Lunch Milk Expense
Lunch Milk Expense 0 196206 10.0000.2560.490.01.000 $190.46
1/7/2016 Lunch Milk Expense
Lunch Milk Expense 0 196445 10.0000.2560.490.01.000 $190.46
1/11/2016 Lunch Milk Expense
Check #: 133219
PO/InvoiceTotal: $571.38
Vendor Total: $571.38
BrainPOP LLC BRAINPOP
Check Group:
Tech Subscriptions 0 US134634 10.0000.2225.300.03.000 $2,295.00
1/7/2016 Tech Subscriptions
Check #: 133220
PO/InvoiceTotal: $2,295.00
Vendor Total: $2,295.00
Carol Rosenberg ROSENBE
RG
Check Group:
Professional Growth 0 01/08/16 10.0000.2330.300.00.000 $65.00
1/8/2016 Professional Growth
Check #: 133221
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 5



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
PO/InvoiceTotal: $65.00
Vendor Total: $65.00
Carolina Biological Suppl CAROLINA
Check Group:
Science Supplies 0 49349816 RI 10.0000.1110.410.10.000 $42.95
1/11/2016 Science Supplies
Check #: 133222
PO/InvoiceTotal: $42.95
Vendor Total: $42.95
CATHLEEN SHERIDAN SHERIDAN
C
Check Group:
Professional Growth 0 01/08/16 10.0000.2330.300.00.000 $65.00
1/8/2016 Professional Growth
Check #: 133223
PO/InvoiceTotal: $65.00
Vendor Total: $65.00
CDW Government, Inc CDW
Check Group:
Printer Ink/Toner 0 BJG0869 10.0000.2225.400.02.000 $159.07
12/1/2015 Printer Ink/Toner
Tech Material & Supplies 0 BKG1580 10.0000.2225.400.00.000 $436.11
1/7/2016 Tech Material & Supplies
Check #: 133224
Check Group: 1/13/16
Tech Material & Supplies 0 BKH2900 10.0000.2225.400.00.000 $161.67
1/7/2016 Tech Material & Supplies
Check #: 133225
Check Group:
Printed: 01/13/2016 rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 6



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
3rd Grade Supplies BMJ2735 10.0000.1110.410.03.000 $41.65
12/15/2015 3rd Grade Supplies
3rd Grade Supplies BML8245 10.0000.1110.410.03.000 $207.91
12/16/2015 3rd Grade Supplies
Check #: 133224
PO/InvoiceTotal: $1,006.41
Vendor Total: $1,006.41
Cerebellum Corporation Dist of Sunburst CEREBELL
UM
Check Group: 01/13/16
Library General Supplies 180992 10.0000.2220.410.00.000 $22.25
1/8/2016 Library General Supplies
Check #: 133226
PO/InvoiceTotal: $22.25
Vendor Total: $22.25
CHICAGO TRIBUNE SUBSCRIPN CHGOTRIB
Check Group:
Tribune Subscription 10548450/Pay to  10.0000.2310.400.00.000 $63.92
3/13
12/20/2015 Board Periodicals
Check #: 133227
PO/InvoiceTotal: $63.92
Vendor Total: $63.92
Coca Cola Bottling Co COCACOL
A
Check Group:
Water/Soda/Coffee 765203140 10.0000.2410.410.04.000 $316.80
1/7/12016 Water/Soda/Coffee
Check #: 133228
PO/InvoiceTotal: $316.80
Vendor Total: $316.80
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 7



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Comcast COMCAST
Check Group:
Comcast Network 10 40036004 10.0000.2225.300.01.000 $2,990.00
1/1/2016 Comcast Network
Check #: 133229
PO/InvoiceTotal: $2,990.00
Vendor Total: $2,990.00
CORNER BAKERY CORNERB
AKE
Check Group:
Lunch Milk Expense 10 11004695510125 10.0000.2560.490.01.000 $236.50
1/7/2016 Lunch Milk Expense
Check #: 133230
PO/InvoiceTotal: $236.50
Vendor Total: $236.50
Customink,LLC CUSTOMIN
K
Check Group:
Music Supplies 10 6685308 10.0000.1120.410.02.000 $450.00
1/7/2016 Music Supplies
Check #: 133231
PO/InvoiceTotal: $450.00
Vendor Total: $450.00
DALE LUKSHA LUKSHA
Check Group:
Health Insurancee Board Portion 10 January 2016 10.0000.2410.220.00.000 $860.00
1/7/2016 Health Insurancee Board Portion
Check #: 133232
PO/InvoiceTotal: $860.00
Vendor Total: $860.00
Delta School Specialty DELTA
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 8



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Check Group: 01/13/2016
Science Supplies 0 202501268825 10.0000.1120.410.09.000 $2,573.76
12/3/2015 Science Supplies
Check #: 133233
PO/InvoiceTotal: $2,573.76
Vendor Total: $2,573.76
Developmental Resources
Check Group:
Professional Growth 0 16645 10.0000.2330.300.00.000 $318.00
1/8/2016 Professional Growth
Check #: 133234
PO/InvoiceTotal: $318.00
Vendor Total: $318.00
Evans, Marshall & Pease PC EVANSMA
RSH
Check Group:
Board Audit Service 0 5262 10.0000.2310.318.05.000 $8,440.00
1/7/2016 Board Audit Service
Check #: 133235
Check Group: 01/13/2016
Board Audit Service 0 5275 10.0000.2310.318.05.000 $300.00
1/8/2016 Board Audit Service
Check #: 133236
PO/InvoiceTotal: $8,740.00
Vendor Total: $8,740.00
Evollve,Inc
Check Group:
JSSPVA Curriculum Supply/MakerSpa 0 1020 10.0000.2210.410.01.000 $1,000.00
12/15/2015 JSSPVA Curriculum Supply
Check #: 133237
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 9



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
PO/InvoiceTotal: $1,000.00
Vendor Total: $1,000.00
Fed Ex FEDERALE
X
Check Group: 01/13/16
Shipping Service 0 5-264-82589 10.0000.2410.340.00.000 $34.95
1/8/2016 Shipping Service
Check #: 133238
PO/InvoiceTotal: $34.95
Vendor Total: $34.95
Flinn Scientific Inc FLINN
Check Group:
Science Supplies 0 1930373 10.0000.1120.410.09.000 $176.84
1/7/2016 Science Supplies
Check #: 133239
PO/InvoiceTotal: $176.84
Vendor Total: $176.84
Follett School Solutions, Inc FOLLETTS
CH
Check Group:
Library Books 0 736645F-2 10.0000.2220.430.00.000 $13.15
12/24/2015 Library Books
Reading Supplies 0 791595F-1 10.0000.1110.410.09.000 $429.20
1/11/2016 Reading Supplies
Library Books 0 799878-6 10.0000.2220.430.00.000 $1,339.79
12/21/2015 Library Books
Check #: 133240
PO/InvoiceTotal: $1,782.14
Vendor Total: $1,782.14
Frank Cooney Co, Inc COONEY
Check Group:
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 10



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Oper and Maint Supplies 10 61324 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $291.50
1/7/2016 Oper and Maint Supplies
Check #: 133241
PO/InvoiceTotal: $291.50
Vendor Total: $291.50
Genesis Technologies GENESIS
Check Group:
Printer Ink/Toner 10 527066 10.0000.2225.400.02.000 $551.28
1/11/2016 Printer Ink/Toner
Printer Ink/Toner 10 532502 10.0000.2225.400.02.000 $213.32
1/7/2016 Printer Ink/Toner
Printer Ink/Toner 10 532533 10.0000.2225.400.02.000 $1,158.81
1/7/2016 Printer Ink/Toner
Printer Ink/Toner 10 533018 10.0000.2225.400.02.000 $246.74
1/7/2016 Printer Ink/Toner
Printer Ink/Toner 10 534542 10.0000.2225.400.02.000 $190.91
1/6/2016 Printer Ink/Toner
Check #: 133242
PO/InvoiceTotal: $2,361.06
Vendor Total: $2,361.06
Genesis Technologies Inc GENESIST
EC
Check Group: 01/13/2016
Copier 10 18034853 10.0000.2410.390.00.000 $2,565.71
1/7/2016 Copier
Check #: 133243
PO/InvoiceTotal: $2,565.71
Vendor Total: $2,565.71
Gordon Food Service, Inc GORDONF
OO0D
Check Group:
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 11



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Organic Milk Expense 0 166999123 10.0000.2560.490.04.000 $1,164.60
1/7/2016 Organic Milk Expense
Check #: 133244
PO/InvoiceTotal: $1,164.60
Vendor Total: $1,164.60
Grand Stage Company
Check Group:
Oper and Maint Supplies 0 203406 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $224.20
1/12/2016 Oper and Maint Supplies
Check #: 133245
PO/InvoiceTotal: $224.20
Vendor Total: $224.20
Guard911 LLC GUARD911
LL
Check Group: 1186
Invoice # 1186 0 1186 10.0000.2225.300.03.000 $396.00
1/7/2016 Tech Subscriptions
Check #: 133246
PO/InvoiceTotal: $396.00
Vendor Total: $396.00
IEC Nextera Energy Services IECNEXTE
RA
Check Group: 01/13/16
Electricity 0 12222015 20.0000.2540.466.00.000 $7,605.40
1/8/2016 Electricity
Check #: 133247
PO/InvoiceTotal: $7,605.40
Vendor Total: $7,605.40

IFIXIT
Check Group:

Printed:  01/13/2016

2:47:58 PM

Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail

2015.4.09

Page:

12



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Tech Material & Supplies 0 1056981 10.0000.2225.400.00.000 $121.35
12/4/2015 Tech Material & Supplies
Check #: 133248
PO/InvoiceTotal: $121.35
Vendor Total: $121.35
Il Assoc of School Business Officials IASBO
Check Group:
Admin General Supplies 0 040226-040814 10.0000.2321.410.00.000 $224.93
1/11/2016 Admin General Supplies
Check #: 133249
PO/InvoiceTotal: $224.93
Vendor Total: $224.93
IXL LEARNING IXL
Check Group:
Tech Subscriptions 0 S283081 10.0000.2225.300.03.000 $192.00
12/28/2015 Tech Subscriptions
Check #: 133250
PO/InvoiceTotal: $192.00
Vendor Total: $192.00
J W Pepper PEPPER
Check Group:
Music Supplies 0 11B42455 10.0000.1120.410.02.000 $233.87
1/6/2016 Music Supplies
Check #: 133251
PO/InvoiceTotal: $233.87
Vendor Total: $233.87
Jessica Jones JONES1
Check Group: 01/13/16
Prof and Tech 0 1537-2 10.0000.2330.310.00.000 $3,322.50
1/8/2016 Prof and Tech

Printed:  01/13/2016

2:47:58 PM

Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail

2015.4.09

Page:

13



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Check #: 133252
POl/InvoiceTotal: $3,322.50
Vendor Total: $3,322.50
Jill Carell CARELL
Check Group:
1st Grade Supplies 0 8/4-8/25/15 10.0000.1110.410.01.000 $71.83
1/7/12016 1st Grade Supplies
Check #: 133253
POl/InvoiceTotal: $71.83
Vendor Total: $71.83
Kenilworth School District No. 38
Check Group:
Ck 5408 0 Revolving 10.0000.0460.000.00.000 $35.00
1/1/3/16
1/13/2016 DUE TO/FROM REVOLVING ACCOUNT
Ck 5409 0 Revolving 10.0000.0460.000.00.000 $15.00
1/1/3/16
1/13/2016 DUE TO/FROM REVOLVING ACCOUNT
CK 5410 0 Revolving 10.0000.0460.000.00.000 $183.00
1/1/3/16
1/13/2016 DUE TO/FROM REVOLVING ACCOUNT
Check #: 133254
POl/InvoiceTotal: $233.00
Vendor Total: $233.00
Kristin Pilant
Check Group:
Postage for Veteran's Day Pkgs 0 11/18-11/19/2015 10.0000.2620.300.02.000 $728.15
1/11/2016 Postage
Check #: 133255
POl/InvoiceTotal: $728.15
Vendor Total: $728.15
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 14



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Lakeland/Larson Elevator LAKELAND
Check Group:
Care and Upkeep - Equip 0 67730 20.0000.2544.310.00.000 $184.95
1/8/2016 Care and Upkeep - Equip
Check #: 133256
PO/InvoiceTotal: $184.95
Vendor Total: $184.95
Learning Services Intl, Inc
Check Group:
Tech Material & Supplies 0 8045035 10.0000.2225.400.00.000 $492.00
1/12/2016 Tech Material & Supplies
Check #: 133257
PO/InvoiceTotal: $492.00
Vendor Total: $492.00
Lowery McDonnell Company
Check Group:
Power supply cords 0 INV048104 10.0000.2225.323.00.000 $350.00
1/13/2016 Tech Repair & Maintenance
Check #: 133258
PO/InvoiceTotal: $350.00
Vendor Total: $350.00
Lungate, Inc LUNGATEI
NC
Check Group:
Communication 0 702 20.0000.2540.340.00.000 $1,080.00
1/8/2016 Communication
Check #: 133259
PO/InvoiceTotal: $1,080.00
Vendor Total: $1,080.00
Menards-Morton Grove MENARDS
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 15



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Check Group: 01/13/16
Oper and Maint Supplies 0 11186 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $46.63
12/15/2015 Oper and Maint Supplies
Check #: 133261
Check Group:
Oper and Maint Supplies 0 12971 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $104.97
1/7/2016 Oper and Maint Supplies
Check #: 133260
PO/InvoiceTotal: $151.60
Vendor Total: $151.60
Michiana LLC DBA Marla's Lunch
Check Group:
Lunch Expense 0 12/09/15 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $573.50
1/8/2016 Lunch Expense
Check #: 133262
PO/InvoiceTotal: $573.50
Vendor Total: $573.50
MindWare MINDWAR
E
Check Group:
General Supplies 0 675590464-01 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $158.44
1/12/2016 General Supplies
Check #: 133263
PO/InvoiceTotal: $158.44
Vendor Total: $158.44
Modular Robotics Incorporated
Check Group:
JSSPVA Curriculum Supply/Maker Space 0 100009943 10.0000.2210.410.01.000 $1,189.00
1/11/2016 JSSPVA Curriculum Supply
Check #: 133264
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 16



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
PO/InvoiceTotal: $1,189.00
Vendor Total: $1,189.00
NATIONAL SPANISH EXAMINATIONS NATIONAL
SP
Check Group:
National Spanish Exams 10 1020249FRR/102 10.0000.1120.410.28.000 $420.00
001RPM
1/8/2016 Spanish Material & Supplies

Check #: 133265

PO/InvoiceTotal: $420.00
Vendor Total: $420.00
No Suburban Special Education District NSSED
Check Group:
Fees Other GOV NSSED 10 161005 10.0000.4120.310.00.000 $8,261.55
1/12/2016 Fees Other Gov NSSED
Spec Program Tuition 10 161055 10.0000.4120.600.00.000 $4,338.00
1/12/2016 Spec Program Tuition
Spec Program Tuition 10 161085 10.0000.4120.600.00.000 $125,719.92
1/12/2016 Spec Program Tuition
Check #: 133266
PO/InvoiceTotal: $138,319.47
Vendor Total: $138,319.47
North Shore Transit Inc.
Check Group:
Student Transportation 10 NO41-RTINV1001 40.0000.2550.331.00.000 $3,598.56
070
1/11/2016 Student Transportation
Check #: 133267
PO/InvoiceTotal: $3,598.56
Vendor Total: $3,598.56

North Suburban Special Ed Org NSSEO

Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 17



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Check Group:
Spec Ed Purchased Svc 0 8265 10.0000.1200.390.00.000 $371.58
1/11/2016 Spec Ed Purchased Svc
Check #: 133268
PO/InvoiceTotal: $371.58
Vendor Total: $371.58
Northern lllinois Gas NICOR
Check Group: 01/13/16
Natural Gas 0 12/01/01/01/16 20.0000.2540.465.00.000 $650.06
1/8/2016 Natural Gas
Check #: 133269
PO/InvoiceTotal: $650.06
Vendor Total: $650.06
NuToys NUTOYS
Check Group:
Bldg Service Supplies 0 43875 20.0000.2540.420.00.000 $223.60
12/10/2015 Bldg Service Supplies
Check #: 133270
PO/InvoiceTotal: $223.60
Vendor Total: $223.60
Office Depot OFFICEDE
PO
Check Group:
General Supplies 0 810510773001 10.0000.2410.410.00.000 $350.98
1/7/2016 General Supplies
Check #: 133271
PO/InvoiceTotal: $350.98
Vendor Total: $350.98
Olson Transportation, Inc OLSON
Check Group:
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 18



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Field Trips 0 18360 40.0000.2550.335.00.000 $644.70
1/7/2016 Field Trips
Field Trips 0 18361 40.0000.2550.335.00.000 $982.40
1/7/2016 Field Trips
Check #: 133272
POl/InvoiceTotal: $1,627.10
Vendor Total: $1,627.10
Panera Bread/St Louis Bread Co PANERA
Check Group:
60063900417 INV 0 60063900417 10.0000.2560.490.03.000 $5.00
1/7/2016 In-Service/Lunch Supplies
In-Service/Lunch Supplies 0 60063900419 10.0000.2560.490.03.000 $10.00
11/25/2015 In-Service/Lunch Supplies
Lunch Expense 0 60063900446 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $67.94
12/7/2015 Lunch Expense
Lunch Expense 0 60063900447 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $47.47
12/10/2015 Lunch Expense
Lunch Expense 0 60063900450 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $136.40
12/14/2015 Lunch Expense
Lunch Expense 0 60063900454 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $45.96
12/15/2015 Lunch Expense
Lunch Expense 0 60063900455 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $133.95
12/16/2015 Lunch Expense
Check #: 133273
Check Group: 01/13/2016
Lunch Expense 0 60063900466 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $80.98
1/8/2016 Lunch Expense
Check #: 133274
Check Group:
Lunch Expense 0 60063900468 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $52.95
1/8/2016 Lunch Expense
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 19



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Check #: 133273
POl/InvoiceTotal: $580.65
Vendor Total: $580.65
Peapod PEAPOD
Check Group:
Home Ec Supplies 0 a72999106-19 10.0000.1120.410.07.000 $156.36
1/7/12016 Home Ec Supplies
Check #: 133275
POl/InvoiceTotal: $156.36
Vendor Total: $156.36
Piero's Pizza PIEROS
Check Group:
Lunch Expense 0 12/29/15 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $53.40
1/12/2016 Lunch Expense
Lunch Expense 0 275846 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $34.35
1/12/2016 Lunch Expense
Training Lunch 0 276235 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $46.45
1/2/2016 Lunch Expense
Lunch Expense 0 276430 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $37.75
1/7/2016 Lunch Expense
Check #: 133276
PO/InvoiceTotal: $171.95
Vendor Total: $171.95
Premier Mechanical Inc PREMIER
MEC
Check Group: 01/1316
Repair and Maint Service 0 50850 20.0000.2540.323.00.000 $2,831.50
1/8/2016 Repair and Maint Service
Check #: 133277
PO/InvoiceTotal: $2,831.50
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 20



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Vendor Total: $2,831.50
QUILL.COM QUILLCOM
Check Group: 01/13/16
Paper Supplies 0 1308001 10.0000.2410.410.02.000 $2,127.20
1/8/2016 Paper Supplies
General Supplies 0 1308001 10.0000.2410.410.00.000 $100.86
1/8/2016 General Supplies
Check #: 133278
PO/InvoiceTotal: $2,228.06
Vendor Total: $2,228.06
RAPTOR RAPTOR
Check Group: 01/13/16
Raptor Annual Subscription 0 40668 10.0000.2225.300.03.000 $480.00
1/8/2016 Tech Subscriptions
Check #: 133279
PO/InvoiceTotal: $480.00
Vendor Total: $480.00
Raymond Geddes Co., Inc
Check Group:
State Library Grant Books 0 563466 10.0000.2222.430.90.000 $344.76
1/12/2016 State Library Grant Books
Check #: 133280
PO/InvoiceTotal: $344.76
Vendor Total: $344.76
Robbins,Schwartz,Nicholas ROBBIN
Check Group: 01/13/16
Board Legal Service 0 265504 10.0000.2310.318.00.000 $4,390.89
1/8/2016 Board Legal Service
Check #: 133281
PO/InvoiceTotal: $4,390.89
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 21



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Vendor Total: $4,390.89
ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS ROSEPES
T
Check Group:
Grounds Services 0 1721716 20.0000.2540.329.00.000 $93.00
1/8/2016 Grounds Services
Check #: 133282
PO/InvoiceTotal: $93.00
Vendor Total: $93.00
Scantron SCANTRO
N
Check Group:
Tech Repair & Maintenance 0 13791191 10.0000.2225.323.00.000 $620.00
12/3/2015 Tech Repair & Maintenance
Check #: 133283
PO/InvoiceTotal: $620.00
Vendor Total: $620.00
School Health Corp SCHHEALT
H
Check Group:
Health Materials & Supplies 0 3067565-01 10.0000.1120.410.14.000 $8.58
12/4/2015 Health Materials & Supplies
Check #: 133284
PO/InvoiceTotal: $8.58
Vendor Total: $8.58
School Speciality SCHOOLS
PEC
Check Group:
General Supplies 0 208115135683 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 ($51.04)
1/8/2016 General Supplies
General Supplies 0 208115147191 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 ($31.90)
1/8/2016 General Supplies
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 22



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
General Supplies 0 208115291827 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 ($54.50)
1/8/2016 General Supplies
General Supplies 0 208115600477 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $70.22
1/11/2016 General Supplies
General Supplies 0 208115614431 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $329.96
12/10/2015 General Supplies
Check #: 133285
PO/InvoiceTotal: $262.74
Vendor Total: $262.74
School-Pak, Inc SCHOOLP
AK1
Check Group:
General Supplies 0 143197 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $104.02
1/7/2016 General Supplies
Check #: 133286
PO/InvoiceTotal: $104.02
Vendor Total: $104.02
SirsiDynix SIRSIDYNI
X
Check Group:
SCRI DYNEX 0 INVMT028687 10.0000.2222.300.01.000 $10,249.15
1/7/2016 SCRI DYNEX
Check #: 133287
PO/InvoiceTotal: $10,249.15
Vendor Total: $10,249.15
SPRINT SPRINT
Check Group:
Communication 0 190445514-040 20.0000.2540.340.00.000 $538.48
1/7/2016 Communication
Communication 0 190445514-041 20.0000.2540.340.00.000 $540.30
1/7/2016 Communication
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 23



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Check #: 133288
PO/InvoiceTotal: $1,078.78
Vendor Total: $1,078.78
Talx UC Express TALXUC
Check Group:
Unemployment Insurance 0 1986091 80.0000.2363.381.00.000 $125.00
1/7/2016 Unemployment Insurance
Check #: 133289
PO/InvoiceTotal: $125.00
Vendor Total: $125.00
TeachingBooks.net TEACHING
BO
Check Group:
Tech Subscriptions 0 2015-641 10.0000.2225.300.03.000 $395.00
1/7/2016 Tech Subscriptions
Check #: 133290
PO/InvoiceTotal: $395.00
Vendor Total: $395.00
The Cove School
Check Group: 1/13/16
Spec Ed Purchased Svc 0 SD38-1215 10.0000.1200.390.00.000 $3,347.12
1/8/2016 Spec Ed Purchased Svc
Check #: 133291
PO/InvoiceTotal: $3,347.12
Vendor Total: $3,347.12
The H.W. Wilson Company HWWILSO
NCO
Check Group:
State Library Grant Books 0 332665 10.0000.2222.430.90.000 $307.50
1/7/2016 State Library Grant Books
Check #: 133292
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 24



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
PO/InvoiceTotal: $307.50
Vendor Total: $307.50
The Omni Group OMNIGRO
UP
Check Group:
403B Administrative Services 1601-7911 10.0000.2520.311.01.000 $21.00
1/7/2016 403B Administrative Services
Check #: 133293
PO/InvoiceTotal: $21.00
Vendor Total: $21.00
Toula Sideris SIDERIS24
Check Group:
Science Supplies 9/14-11/10/15 10.0000.1120.410.09.000 $41.04
1/11/2016 Science Supplies
Check #: 133294
PO/InvoiceTotal: $41.04
Vendor Total: $41.04
Tracy McDowell MCDOWEL
L
Check Group:
Pre K Teacher Supplies 12/10/15 10.0000.1125.410.00.000 $17.85
1/7/2016 Pre K Teacher Supplies
Check #: 133295
PO/InvoiceTotal: $17.85
Vendor Total: $17.85
Tribune Publishing Company,LLC
Check Group:
Printing 002429360 10.0000.2570.360.00.000 $444.91
12/27/2015 Printing
Check #: 133296
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 25



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
PO/InvoiceTotal: $444.91
Vendor Total: $444.91
Tyco Intergrated Security, LLC TYCOINTE
RG
Check Group:
Care and Upkeep - Equip 0 25561888 20.0000.2544.310.00.000 $102.57
1/7/2016 Care and Upkeep - Equip
Check #: 133297
PO/InvoiceTotal: $102.57
Vendor Total: $102.57
Tyler Heidtke HEIDTKE2
4
Check Group:
Professional Growth 0 12/14/15 10.0000.2330.300.00.000 $342.96
1/13/2016 Professional Growth
Supplies 0 12/15/15 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $101.82
12/15/2015 General Supplies
Check #: 133298
PO/InvoiceTotal: $444.78
Vendor Total: $444.78
Tyler Technologies, Inc TYLERTEC
HN
Check Group:
Computer Software 0 025-141978 10.0000.2223.470.00.000 $2,800.00
1/7/2016 Computer Software
Computer Software 0 025-142525 10.0000.2223.470.00.000 $4,052.42
1/8/2016 Computer Software
Computer Software 0 025-144561 10.0000.2223.470.00.000 $2,472.31
12/31/2015 Computer Software
Check #: 133299
PO/InvoiceTotal: $9,324.73
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 26



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Vendor Total: $9,324.73
Vanguard Energy Services LLC VANGUAR
D
Check Group:
Natural Gas 0 400-1511-3363 20.0000.2540.465.00.000 $1,889.86
1/11/2016 Natural Gas
Natural Gas 0 400-1512-3360 20.0000.2540.465.00.000 $2,395.29
1/7/2016 Natural Gas
Check #: 133300
PO/InvoiceTotal: $4,285.15
Vendor Total: $4,285.15
W. W. Grainger GRAINGER
Check Group:
Operation and Maintenance Supplies 0 9917748072 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $279.99
12/14/2015 Oper and Maint Supplies
Oper and Maint Supplies 0 9930935391 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $935.15
1/5/2016 Oper and Maint Supplies
Oper and Maint Supplies 0 9930935409 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $388.50
1/5/2016 Oper and Maint Supplies
Oper and Maint Supplies 0 9931313457 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $26.40
1/5/2016 Oper and Maint Supplies
Check #: 133301
PO/InvoiceTotal: $1,630.04
Vendor Total: $1,630.04
Wilmette Bike Shop WILBIKE
Check Group:
Board Student Recognition 0 42256 10.0000.2310.400.02.000 $560.00
12/14/2015 Board Student Recognition
Check #: 133302
PO/InvoiceTotal: $560.00
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 27



Kenilworth School District 38

Voucher Detail Listing Voucher Batch Number: 1008 01/18/2016
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016
Vendor Remit Name QTY PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Description Vendor # Invoice Date
Vendor Total: $560.00
Wilmette Public School District #39 WILPS
Check Group: 1/13/2016
Board Background Checks 10 3005 10.0000.2310.316.00.000 $75.00
12/16/2015 Board Background Checks
Check #: 133303
PO/InvoiceTotal: $75.00
Vendor Total: $75.00
Wilshore Electric LLC WILSHORE
Check Group:
Repair and Maint Service 10 6735 20.0000.2540.323.00.000 $245.00
1/8/2016 Repair and Maint Service
Check #: 133304
PO/InvoiceTotal: $245.00
Vendor Total: $245.00
Grand Total: $256,610.20
End of Report
Printed: 01/13/2016 2:47:58 PM Report:  rptAPVoucherDetail 2015.4.09 Page: 28



Education

Operations & Maintenance
Debt Service
Transportation

IMRF & Social Security
Capital Projects

Working Cash

Tort Fund

Life Safety

FY15 Year End Audit Adjustments

Less Outstanding Checks

Plus Deposits In Transit

Total Cash and Investments

Investments
Checking Account
Total Cash and Investments

Monthly Balance Sheet
December 1, 2015 - December 31, 2015

Beg Fund Balance
(December 1, 2015)

8,977,352.42
4,155,484.41
628,021.94
184,602.04
396,506.13
0.00
3,022,969.90
532,458.67
0.00
17,897,395.51

Ending Fund Balance

Receipts Expenditures (December 31, 2015)
170,428.27 741,562.80 8,406,217.89
11,085.62 63,035.47 4,103,534.56
7,812.67 1,264.82 634,569.79
90.79 4,677.83 180,015.00
4,613.58 17,130.81 383,988.90
0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 3,022,969.90
1,275.61 1,326.86 532,407.42
0.00 0.00 0.00
195,306.54 828,998.59 17,263,703.46

-15,670.33
121,892.40

0.00

17,126,140.73
Ending Fund Balance
(December 31, 2015)
11,954,349.68

5171,791.05
17,126,140.73



KENILWORTH ScHoOL DISTRICT NoO. 38

Investment Certification Statement

All investments listed with PMA (ISDLAF) comply with the Kenilworth School District No. 38
Investment Policy.

Dr. C’gstal LeRoy ‘

Superintendent/Chief School Business Official
Kenilworth School District # 38

January 19, 2016
Date

Kenilworth District No. 38 542 Abbotsford Road  Kenilworth, Illinois 60043  Phone 847-256-5006 Fax 847-256-4418

www.kenilworth38.org



Kenilworth District 38 ISDFLAF Investments

December 31, 2015
Estimated
Current Market

Provider/Instrument Acq. Date Cost Value Due Date
Illinois School District Liquid Account 4,205,872.90 4,205,872.90
Illinois School District Max Account 2,500,883.43 2,500,883.43
4.25% Washtenaw Cnty MI 12/17/15 101,430.00 101,283.00 05/01/16
Capital Bank NA 12/17/14 248,100.00 248,100.00 06/09/16
Bank of East Asia 12/17/14 248,300.00 248,300.00 06/09/16
Bank of The Ozarks 12/17/14 248,500.00 248,500.00 06/09/16
United Texas Bank 12/17/14 248,700.00 248,700.00 06/09/16
Sonabank 12/17/14 248,300.00 248,300.00 06/09/16
Pacific Alliance 12/17/14 247,400.00 247,400.00 06/09/16
Pulaski Bank 12/17/14 247,400.00 247,400.00 06/09/16
Bank of New England 12/17/14 248,500.00 248,500.00 06/09/16
Bremer Bank, NA 12/17/14 248,500.00 248,500.00 06/09/16
Bank 7 12/17/14 248,600.00 248,600.00 06/09/16
BOFI Federal Bank 12/17/14 248,700.00 248,700.00 06/09/16
Rockford B&TC 12/17/14 248,700.00 248,700.00 06/09/16
0.65% - Goldman Sachs Bank USA Cerificate of Deposit 12/16/14 249,305.26 249,044.82 06/24/16
0.6% - Safra National Bank Certificate of Deposit 12/16/14 249,681.09 249,131.97 06/30/16
0.65% - First Niagra Bank Cerificate of Deposit 12/16/14 249,741.50 249,000.00 06/30/16
4% Erie CNTY NY Revenue 12/17/15 101,710.00 101,776.00 07/01/16
5% Harris CNTY TX LTD GO 12/17/15 103,410.00 103,354.00 10/01/16
4% Glendale AZ LTD GO 12/17/15 104,740.00 104,429.00 07/01/17
5% Miami-Dade CNTY FL ULT GO 12/17/15 116,457.00 116,879.40 07/01/17
4% Clark CNTY NV LTD GO 12/17/15 69,023.50 70,331.30 11/01/18
3.25% Cook Kane Lake & McHenry CNTY 12/17/15 90,202.00 89,967.40 12/01/18
2% Outagamie CNTY WI ULT GO 12/17/15 136,971.00 137,332.80 04/01/19
3% West Des Moines UA ULT GO 12/17/15 104,070.00 105,129.00 06/01/22
4% Schertz/Seguin TX Govt Contract 12/17/15 78,810.00 82,410.75 02/01/23
3% Hamilton CNTY IN LTD GO 12/17/15 100,140.00 106,093.00 07/15/23
4% King CNTY WA ULT GO 12/17/15 119,311.50 120,003.45 12/20/23
3% New York City Transitional 12/17/15 147,826.00 148,055.60 11/01/24
3% Evanston, IL ULT GO 12/17/15 74,497.50 78,714.75 12/01/24
3% South Huntington NY SD ULT GO 12/17/15 49,815.00 51,110.00 03/15/25
4.25% Clark CNTY NV GO LTD 12/17/15 20,752.00 21,846.40 12/01/25
Fixed Income - Market Value $ 11,954,349.68
Fixed Income - Cost Value $ 11,972,348.97
Accrued Interest 262.70

Total Restricted Investments

$11,972,611.67

All investments listed with ISDLAF, comply with Kenilworth School District No. 38 Investment policy.

1/15/16



Kenilworth School District No. 38 2:160

School Board

Board Attorney

The School Board may enter into agreements for legal services with one or more attorneys or law
firms to be the Board Attorney(s). The Board Attorney represents the School Board in its capacity as
the governing body for the School District. The Board Attorney shall not represent another client if
the representation involves a concurrent conflict of interest, unless permitted by the Ill. Rules of
Professional Conduct adopted by the Ill. Supreme Court. The Board Attorney serves on a retainer or
other fee arrangement as determined in advance. The Board Attorney will provide services as
described in the agreement for legal services. The District will only pay for legal services that are
provided in accordance with the agreement for legal services or are otherwise authorized by this
policy or a majority of the Board.

The Superintendent, his or her designee, or Board President, are authorized to confer with and/or seek
the legal advice of the Board Attorney. The Board may authorize a specific member to confer with
legal counsel on its behalf.

The Superintendent may authorize the Board Attorney to represent the District in any legal matter
until the Board has an opportunity to consider the matter.

The Board retains the right to consult with or employ other attorneys and to terminate the service of
any attorney.

LEGAL REF.: Rule 1.7 (Conflict of Interest: Current Clients) and Rule 1.13 (Organization as
Client) of the Ill. Rules of Professional Conduct adopted by the 1ll. Supreme
Court.

CROSS REF.: 4:60 (Purchases and Contracts)

2:160 Adopted 09-21-09

Revised 01-19-16
Page 1 of 1



Kenilworth School District No. 38 2:260

School Board

Uniform Grievance Procedure

A student, parent/guardian, employee, or community member should notify any District Complaint
Manager if he or she believes that the School Board, its employees, or agents have violated his or her
rights guaranteed by the State or federal Constitution, State or federal statute, or Board policy, or have
a complaint regarding:

Title 11 of the Americans with Disabilities Act;
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972;
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973;
Individuals With Disabilities Education Act, 20 U.S.C. §1400 et seq.;
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. §2000d et seq.;
Equal Employment Opportunities Act (Title VII of the Civil Rights Act), 42 U.S.C. §2000e
et seq.;
7. Sexual harassment (Illinois Human Rights Act, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972);
8. Bullying, 105 ILCS 5/27-23.7
9. Misuse of funds received for services to improve educational opportunities for educationally
disadvantaged or deprived children;
10. Curriculum, instructional materials, and/or programs;
11. Victims’ Economic Security and Safety Act, 820 ILCS 180;
12. lllinois Equal Pay Act of 2003, 820 ILCS 112;
13. Provision of services to homeless students; or
14. [llinois Whistleblower Act, 740 ILCS 174/1 et seq.
15. Employee Credit Privacy Act, 820 ILCS 70/

2 e

The Complaint Manager will first attempt to resolve complaints without resorting to this grievance
procedure . If a complaint is filed under this procedure, the Complaint Manager will address the
complaint promptly and equitably. A student and/or parent/guardian filing a complaint under this
procedure may forego any informal suggestions and/or attempts to resolve it and may proceed
directly to the grievance procedure. In certain circumstances, depending on the seriousness of the
complained of conduct and other factors, the Complaint Manager wiH-may not require a student or
parent/guardian complaining of any form of harassment, discrimination, bullying or misconduct to
attempt to resolve allegations directly with the accused (or the accused’s parents/guardians); this
includes mediation.

Right to Pursue Other Remedies Not Impaired

The right of a person to prompt and equitable resolution of a complaint filed hereunder shall not be
impaired by the person’s pursuit of other remedies, e.g., criminal complaints, civil actions, etc. Use
of this grievance procedure is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies and use of this
grievance procedure does not extend any filing deadline related to the pursuit of other remedies. If a
person is pursuing another remedy subject to a complaint under this policy, the District wiHl-may
continue with a simultaneous investigation under this policy.

Deadlines

2:260 Revised 05-21-12
Revised 01-19-16
Page | 1



All deadlines may be extended by the Complaint Manager as he or she deems appropriate. As used in
this policy, school business days means days on which the District’s main office is open.

Filing a Complaint

A person (hereinafter Complainant) who wishes to avail him or herself of this grievance procedure
may do so by filing a complaint with any District Complaint Manager. The Complainant shall not be
required to file a complaint with a particular Complaint Manager and may request a Complaint
Manager of the same gender. The Complaint Manager may request the Complainant to provide a
written statement regarding the nature of the complaint or require a meeting with a student’s
parent(s)/guardian(s). The Complaint Manager shall assist the Complainant as needed.

For bullying and cyber-bullying, the Complaint Manager shall process and review the complaint
according to Board policy 7:180, Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and
Harassment, in addition to any response required by this policy.

Investigation

The Complaint Manager will investigate the complaint or appoint a qualified person to undertake the
investigation on his or her behalf. The Complaint Manager shall ensure both parties have an equal
opportunity to present evidence during an investigation. If the Complainant is a student, the
Complaint Manager will notify his or her parent(s)/guardian(s) that they may attend any investigatory
meetings in which their child is involved. The complaint and identity of the Complainant will not be
disclosed except: (1) as required by law, this policy, or (2) as necessary to fully investigate the
complaint, or (3) as authorized by the Complainant.

The identity of any student witnesses will not be disclosed except: (1) as required by law or any
collective bargaining agreement, or (2) as necessary to fully investigate the complaint, or (3) as
authorized by the parent/guardian of the student witness, or by the student if the student is 18 years or
age or older.

The Complaint Manager will inform, at regular intervals, the person(s) filing a complaint under this
procedure about the status of the investigation. Within 30 school business days of the date the
complaint was filed, the Complaint Manager shall file a written report of his or her findings with the
Superintendent. The Complaint Manager may request an extension of time. If a complaint of sexual
harassment contains allegations involving the Superintendent, the written report shall be filed with the
Board, which will make a decision in accordance with Section 3 of this policy. The Superintendent
will keep the Board informed of all complaints.

Decision and Appeal

Within 5 school business days after receiving the Complaint Manager’s report, the Superintendent
shall mail his or her written decision to the Complainant and the accused by first class, U.S. mail as
well as the Complaint Manager. All decisions shall be based upon the preponderance of evidence
standard.

Within 10 school business days after receiving the Superintendent’s decision, the Complainant or the
accused may appeal the decision to the Board by making a written request to the Complaint Manager.
The Complaint Manager shall promptly forward all materials relative to the complaint and appeal to
the Board. Within 30 school business days, the Board shall affirm, reverse, or amend the
Superintendent’s decision or direct the Superintendent to gather additional information. Within 5
school business days of the Board’s decision, the Superintendent shall inform the Complainant and
the accused of the Board’s action.

2:260 Revised 05-21-12
Revised 01-19-16
Page | 2



This grievance procedure shall not be construed to create an independent right to a Board hearing.
The failure to strictly follow the timelines in this grievance procedure shall not prejudice any party.

Appointing Nondiscrimination Coordinator and Complaint Managers

The Superintendent shall appoint a Nondiscrimination Coordinator to manage the District’s efforts to
provide equal opportunity employment and educational opportunities and prohibit the harassment of
employees, students, and others. The Nondiscrimination Coordinator also serves as the District’s Title
IX Coordinator.

The Superintendent shall appoint at least one Complaint Manager to administer the complaint process
in this policy. The Superintendent will appoint two Complaint Managers, one of each gender. The
District’s Nondiscrimination Coordinator may be appointed as one of the Complaint Managers.

The Superintendent shall insert into this policy and keep current the names, addresses, and telephone
numbers of the Nondiscrimination Coordinator and the Complaint Managers.

Nondiscrimination Coordinator:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy
Superintendent

542 Abbotsford Road
Address

Kenilworth, Illinois 60043

Email: cleroy@kenilworth38.org

(847)853-3803
Telephone

Complaint Managers:

Mrs. Kendra Wallace Mr. Jeff Rosen

Principal Interim Administrator/Evaluator

542 Abbotsford Road 542 Abbotsford Road

Address Address

Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 Kenilworth, Illinois 60043
Email: kwallace@kenilworth38.org Email: jrosen@kenilworth38.org
(847) 853-3802 (847) 853-3830

Telephone Telephone

LEGAL REF.: Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. 8621 et seq.

Americans With Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq.

Equal Employment Opportunities Act (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act), 42 U.S.C.
82000e et seq.

Equal Pay Act, 29 U.S.C. 8206(d).

Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, 42 U.S.C. §2000ff et seq.

Immigration Reform and Control Act, 8 U.S.C. 81324a et seq.

McKinney Homeless Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. §11431 et seq.

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. §791 et seq.

Title V1 of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. 82000d et seg.

2:260 Revised 05-21-12
Revised 01-19-16
Page | 3



CROSS REF.:

2:260

Title IX of the Education Amendments, 20 U.S.C. 81681 et seq.

105 ILCS 5/2-3.8, 5/3-10, 5/10-20.7a, 5/10-22.5, 5/22-19, 5/24-4, 5/27-1, 5/27-
23.7, and 45/1-15.

Illinois Genetic Information Privacy Act, 410 ILCS 513/.

Illinois Whistleblower Act, 740 ILCS 174/.

Ilinois Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/.

Victims’ Economic Security and Safety Act, 820 ILCS 180, 56 Ill.Admin.Code
Part 280.

Equal Pay Act of 2003, 820 ILCS 112/.

Employee Credit Privacy Act, 820 ILCS 70/.

23 lllLAdmin.Code §81.240 and 200-40.

5:10 (Equal Employment Opportunity and Minority Recruitment), 5:20
(Workplace Harassment Prohibited), 5:30 (Hiring Process and Criteria), 6:140
(Education of Homeless Children), 6:170 (Title | Programs), 6:260 (Complaints
About Curriculum, Instructional Materials, and Programs), 7:10 (Equal
Educational Opportunities), 7:20 (Harassment of Students Prohibited), 7:180
(Preventing Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment), 8:70 (Accommodating
Individuals with Disabilities), 8:110 (Public Suggestions and Concerns)

Revised 05-21-12
Revised 01-19-16
Page | 4



Kenilworth School District No. 38 4:50

Operational Services

Payment Procedures

The Treasurer shall prepare a list of all due and payable bills, indicating vendor hame and amount,
and shall present it to the School Board in advance of the Board’s first regular monthly meeting, or, if
necessary, a special meeting. These bills are reviewed by the Board, after which they may be
approved for payment by Board order. Approval of all bills shall be given by a roll call vote and the
votes shall be recorded in the minutes. The Treasurer shall pay the bills after receiving a Board order
or pertinent portions of the Board minutes, even if the minutes are unapproved, provided the order or
minutes are signed by the Board President and Secretary, or a majority of the Board.

The Treasurer is authorized, without further Board approval, to pay Social Security taxes and other
recurring bills, such as utility bills. These disbursements shall be included in the listing of bills
presented to the Board.

The Board authorizes the Superintendent or designee to establish revolving funds and a petty cash
fund system for lunchrooms, athletics, or similar purposes, provided such funds are maintained in
accordance with Board policy 4:80, Accounting and Audits, and remain in the custody of an employee
who is properly bonded according to State law.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/8-16, 5/10-7, and 5/10-20.19.
23 Ill.Admin.Code §100.70.
CROSS REF-.: 4:60 (Purchases and Contracts), 4:80 (Accounting and Audits)
4:50 Page 1 of 1

Adopted 09-27-10
Revised 01-19-16



Kenilworth School District No. 38 5:50

General Personnel

Drug- and Alcohol-Free Workplace; Tobacco and Electronic Cigarette Prohibition

All District workplaces are drug- and alcohol-free workplaces. All employees are prohibited from
engaging in any of the following activities while on District premises or while performing work for
the District:

1. Unlawful manufacture, dispensing, distribution, possession, or use, or being under the
influence of an illegal or controlled substance. and

2. Distribution, consumption, use, possession, or being under the influence of an alcoholic
beverage; being present on District premises or while performing work for the District when
alcohol consumption is detectible, regardless of when and/or where the use occurred.

3. Possession or use of medical cannabis
For purposes of this policy a controlled substance means a substance that is:
1. Not legally obtainable,
2. Being used in a manner different than prescribed,
3. Legally obtainable, but has not been legally obtained, or
4. Referenced in federal or State controlled substance acts.
As a condition of employment, each employee shall:
1. Abide by the terms of the Board policy respecting a drug- and alcohol-free workplace; and

2. Notify his or her supervisor of his or her conviction under any criminal drug statute for a
violation occurring on the District premises or while performing work for the District, no
later than 5 calendar days after such a conviction.

Unless otherwise prohibited by this policy, prescription and over-the-counter medications are not
prohibited when taken in standard dosages and/or according to prescriptions from the employee’s
licensed health care provider, provided that an employee’s work performance is not impaired.

To make employees aware of the dangers of drug and alcohol abuse, the Superintendent or designee
shall:

1. Provide each employee with a copy of this policy.
2. Post notice of this policy in a place where other information for employees is posted.

3. Make available materials from local, State, and national anti-drug and alcohol-abuse
organizations.

4. Enlist the aid of community and State agencies with drug and alcohol informational and
rehabilitation programs to provide information to District employees.

5. Establish a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:
a. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace,

5:50 Page 1 of 2
Adopted 12-17-12
Revised 05-06-13
Revised 11-17-14
Revised 01-19-16



b. Available drug and alcohol counseling, rehabilitation, re-entry, and any employee
assistance programs, and
c. The penalties that the District may impose upon employees for violations of this policy.

Tobacco and Electronic Cigarette Prohibition

All employees are covered by the conduct prohibitions contained in policy 8:30, Visitors to and
Conduct on School Property. The prohibition on the use of tobacco products and electronic cigarettes
applies both (1) when an employee is on school property, and (2) while an employee is performing
work for the District at a school event regardless of the event’s location. Tobacco shall have the
meaning provided in section 10-20.5b of the School Code. Electronic Cigarette is defined as a
cigarette-shaped device containing a nicotine non-nicotine based liquid that is vaporized and inhaled.

District Action Upon Violation of Policy

An employee who violates this policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including
termination of employment. Alternatively, the School Board may require an employee to
successfully complete an appropriate drug- or alcohol-abuse rehabilitation program.

The Board shall take disciplinary action with respect to an employee convicted of a drug offense in
the workplace within 30 days after receiving notice of the conviction.

Should District employees be engaged in the performance of work under a federal contract or grant,
or under a State contract or grant of $5,000 or more, the Superintendent shall notify the appropriate
State or federal agency from which the District receives contract or grant monies of the employee’s
conviction within 10 days after receiving notice of the conviction.

LEGAL REF.: Americans With Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. 812114,
Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Pilot Program, 410 ILCS 130/.
Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. §812; 21 C.F.R. §1308.11-1308.15.
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 41 U.S.C. §8101 et seq.
Safe and Drug-Free School and Communities Act of 1994, 20 U.S.C. §7101 et seq.
Drug-Free Workplace Act, 30 ILCS 580/.
105 ILCS 5/10-20.5b.

CROSS REF.: 8:30 (Visitors to and Conduct on School Property)

5:50 Page 2 of 2
Adopted 12-17-12
Revised 05-06-13
Revised 11-17-14
Revised 01-19-16



Kenilworth School District No. 38 5:170-AP4

General Personnel

Administrative Procedure - Designation of District Digital Millennium Copyright Act
(DMCA) Agent; Reqistration Process

Before using this exhibit, consult the Board Attorney to first identify whether the District is an online
service provider (OSP) under the DMCA. The DMCA is an amendment to 17 U.S.C. §101 et seq. It
provides certain limitations on the liability of OSPs for copyright infringement under the DMCA’s
Safe Harbor Provision (SHP). OSPs are operators of websites that allow users to generate content of
their own and upload that content to the OSP’s website.

If the District is an OSP, the SHP shields the District from being sued when or if infringing
copyrighted content is uploaded to its website(s), and it provides limitations on liability for storage, at
the direction of a user, of copyrighted material residing on a system or network controlled or operated
by or for an OSP. The SHP is only available if an OSP designates an agent to receive notifications of
claimed infringement, provides the agent’s contact information to the U.S. Copyright Office, and
posts that information on the its website in a location accessible to the public
(www.copyright.gov/onlinesp/).

If the District is an OSP, the Superintendent or designee will follow these steps to identify and
register a DMCA agent to receive notifications of claimed infringement:

1. ldentify an agent to receive notification of claims of infringement. This may be the
Superintendent, an Assistant Superintendent, or another administrator.

2. Fill out the Interim Designation Form (www.copyright.gov/onlinesp/agent.pdf) to designate a
DMCA agent (designation of agent), or, if changing agents, use the Amended Designation
Form (www.copyright.gov/onlinesp/agenta.pdf) to amend a previously designated agent.
Note: The Amended Designation Form replaces a previously filed Interim Designation Form.

3. Determine the fee (listed on the forms discussed in #2). Note: Consult the Board Attorney
about filing alternative names when registering and whether additional fees may apply. The
fee for filing allows for the listing of only one name for OSP. It is the OSP’s legal name. If
the District uses other names or additional URLSs, it should include them in the same filing to
avoid additional fees to register.

4. Draft a check payable to the Register of Copyrights and mail it and the form to: Copyright
RRP, P.O. Box 71537, Washington, DC 20024.

5. Post the District’s DMCA agent’s contact information in a publicly accessible location on the
website. See policy 5:170, Copyright. Note: Consult the Board Attorney about further steps
necessary for registering and posting DMCA agent information. For example, some websites
make users verify that they are not infringing copyright when they upload content, along with
a Terms of Service and Copyright Policy. Other steps may include training from the Board
Attorney about procedures to terminate repeat infringers, responding to takedown notices,

etc.
LEGAL REF.: Federal Copyright Law of 1976, 17 U.S.C. 8101 et seq.
5:170-AP4 Page 1 of 1

Adopted 01-19-16


http://www.copyright.gov/onlinesp/
http://www.copyright.gov/onlinesp/agent.pdf
http://www.copyright.gov/onlinesp/agenta.pdf

Kenilworth School District No. 38 5:170-AP4

General Personnel

Administrative Procedure - Designation of District Digital Millennium Copyright Act
(DMCA) Agent; Reqistration Process

Before using this exhibit, consult the Board Attorney to first identify whether the District is an online
service provider (OSP) under the DMCA. The DMCA is an amendment to 17 U.S.C. §101 et seq. It
provides certain limitations on the liability of OSPs for copyright infringement under the DMCA’s
Safe Harbor Provision (SHP). OSPs are operators of websites that allow users to generate content of
their own and upload that content to the OSP’s website.

If the District is an OSP, the SHP shields the District from being sued when or if infringing
copyrighted content is uploaded to its website(s), and it provides limitations on liability for storage, at
the direction of a user, of copyrighted material residing on a system or network controlled or operated
by or for an OSP. The SHP is only available if an OSP designates an agent to receive notifications of
claimed infringement, provides the agent’s contact information to the U.S. Copyright Office, and
posts that information on the its website in a location accessible to the public
(www.copyright.gov/onlinesp/).

If the District is an OSP, the Superintendent or designee will follow these steps to identify and
register a DMCA agent to receive notifications of claimed infringement:

1. ldentify an agent to receive notification of claims of infringement. This may be the
Superintendent, an Assistant Superintendent, or another administrator.

2. Fill out the Interim Designation Form (www.copyright.gov/onlinesp/agent.pdf) to designate a
DMCA agent (designation of agent), or, if changing agents, use the Amended Designation
Form (www.copyright.gov/onlinesp/agenta.pdf) to amend a previously designated agent.
Note: The Amended Designation Form replaces a previously filed Interim Designation Form.

3. Determine the fee (listed on the forms discussed in #2). Note: Consult the Board Attorney
about filing alternative names when registering and whether additional fees may apply. The
fee for filing allows for the listing of only one name for OSP. It is the OSP’s legal name. If
the District uses other names or additional URLSs, it should include them in the same filing to
avoid additional fees to register.

4. Draft a check payable to the Register of Copyrights and mail it and the form to: Copyright
RRP, P.O. Box 71537, Washington, DC 20024.

5. Post the District’s DMCA agent’s contact information in a publicly accessible location on the
website. See policy 5:170, Copyright. Note: Consult the Board Attorney about further steps
necessary for registering and posting DMCA agent information. For example, some websites
make users verify that they are not infringing copyright when they upload content, along with
a Terms of Service and Copyright Policy. Other steps may include training from the Board
Attorney about procedures to terminate repeat infringers, responding to takedown notices,

etc.
LEGAL REF.: Federal Copyright Law of 1976, 17 U.S.C. 8101 et seq.
5:170-AP4 Page 1 of 1

Adopted 01-19-16


http://www.copyright.gov/onlinesp/
http://www.copyright.gov/onlinesp/agent.pdf
http://www.copyright.gov/onlinesp/agenta.pdf

Kenilworth School District No. 38 5:170

General Personnel

Copyright

Copyright Compliance

District 38 intends to adhere to provisions of the federal Copyright Act of 1976, as amended,
which afford copyright protection to original works of authorship including literary, pictorial,
graphic and audiovisual works as well as to computer software.

While staff members may use appropriate supplementary materials, it is each staff member's
responsibility to abide by the District's copyright compliance procedures and to obey the
copyright laws. No staff member shall, without first obtaining the permission of the
Superintendent or designee, install or download any program on a District owned computer. The
District is not responsible for any violations of the copyright laws by its staff or students. A staff
member should contact the Superintendent or designee whenever the staff member is uncertain
about whether using or copying material complies with the District's procedures or is permissible
under the law, or wants assistance on when and how to obtain proper authorization. At no time
shall it be necessary for a District staff member to violate copyright laws in order to perform
properly his or her duties.

Copyright Infringement; Designationof District Digital Mellennium Copyright Act
(DMCA) Agent

The employee listed below receives complaints about copyright infringement within the use of
the District’s online services. The Superintendent or designee will register this information with
the federal Copyright Office as required by federal law.

District DMCA Agent:

Mrs. Allison Drew

Name

542 Abbotsford Road, Kenilworth, IL 60043
Address

adrew@kenilworth38.org

Email

(847) 853-3808

Telephone

Works Made for Hire

Instructional Materials

The Superintendent or designee shall manage the development of instructional materials and
computer programs by employees during the scope of their employment, in accordance with

5:170 Adopted 03-18-13
Revised 01-19-16
Page 1 of 2



Kenilworth School District No. 38 5:170

State and federal laws and School Board policies. Whenever an employee is assigned to develop
instructional materials and/or computer programs, or otherwise performs such activities within
the scope of his or her employment, the District shall be the owner of the copyright in any
resulting materials or programs, which shall be classified as “works for hire”. The District is
entitled to all proceeds from the sale of works for hire which are instructional materials. Proceeds
from the sale of computer programs developed by an employee within the scope of employment
shall be shared between the employee and the District pursuant to agreement as set forth below.

“Proceeds” are the profits after expenses of development, marketing and sale are deducted, and
shall be computed by the District.

Computer Programs

In accordance with Section 10-23.10(a) of The School Code, an employee who develops a
computer program as a direct result of his or her duties with the District or through use of the
District’s facilities is entitled to a share of the proceeds from the District’s sale or marketing of
the computer program, as agreed to by the District. Neither the employee nor the District may
receive more than 90% of the proceeds. The negotiation for an employee who is represented by
an exclusive bargaining representative may be conducted by the bargaining representative. All
such agreements are subject to Board of Education approval.

The proceeds of a computer program developed by more than one employee shall be equitably
distributed among such employees in proportion to each employee’s participation in the
program’s development, and the District.

LEGAL REF. Federal Copyright Act of 1976, as amended, 17 U.S.C. 8§ 101 et seq.
105 ILCS 5/10-23.10.
CROSS: REF.: 6:235 (Access to Electronic Networks)
5:170 Adopted 03-18-13

Revised 01-19-16
Page 2 of 2



Kenilworth School District No. 38 5:270

Educational Support Personnel

Employment At-Will, Compensation, and Assignment

Employment At-Will

Unless otherwise specifically provided, District employment is at-will, meaning that employment
may be terminated by the District or employee at any time for any reason, other than a reason
prohibited by law, or no reason at all. Nothing in School Board policy is intended or should be
construed as altering the employment at-will relationship.

Compensation

The Board will determine salary and wages for educational support personnel. Increments are
dependent on evidence of continuing satisfactory performance. An employee covered by the
overtime provisions in State or federal law, shall not work overtime without the prior authorization
from the employee’s immediate supervisor. Educational support personnel are paid twice a month.

Assignment
The Superintendent is authorized to make assignments and transfers of educational support personnel.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-22.34 and 5/10-23.5.

CROSS REF.: 5:10 (Equal Employment Opportunity and Minority Recruitment) 5:35
(Compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act), 5:290 (Educational Support
Employee - Employment Termination and Suspensions), 5:310 (Educational
Support Employee - Compensatory Time-Off)

5:270 Page 1 of 1
Replaces Portions of 3100 — Educational Support Personnel

For Adoption 03-18-13

Revised 01-19-16



Kenilworth School District No. 38 5:290

Educational Support Personnel

Employment Termination and Suspensions

Resignation and Retirement

Employees should provide 2 weeks’ notice of resignation, except when the best interests of the
District require that the employee resign immediately, or with less than 2 weeks notice . A resignation
notice cannot be revoked once given. An employee planning to retire should notify his or her
supervisor at least 2 months before the retirement date.

Non-RIF Dismissal

The District may terminate an at-will employee at any time for any or no reason, but not for a reason
prohibited by State or federal law.

Employees who-are have a legitimate expectation of continued employment, may be dismissed: (1) at
the end of the school year or at the end of their respective contract after being provided appropriate
notice and after compliance with any applicable contractual provisions, or (2) mid-year or mid-
contract provided appropriate due process procedures are provided.

The Superintendent is responsible for making dismissal recommendations to the School Board
consistent with the Board’s goal of having a highly qualified, high performing staff.

Reduction in Force and Recall

This section is applicable whenever the Board decides to decrease the number of educational support
personnel or to discontinue some particular type of educational support service and, as a result of that
action, an educational support employee is removed, dismissed, or his or her hours are reduced.

The Board shall use a seniority list to determine the order of dismissal or removal. The seniority list,
categorized by positions, shows the length of continuing service of each full-time educational support
employee. The employee with the shorter length of continuing service within the respective category
of position shall be dismissed first.

Except as provided below, written notice will be given the employee by regular mail and either
certified mail, return receipt requested, or personal delivery at least 30 days before the employee is
removed or dismissed, or his or her hours are reduced, together with a statement of honorable
dismissal and the reason therefore if applicable. The prior written notice will be extended to at least
90 days if the lay-off is due to the District entering into a contract with a third party for non-
instructional services. The prior written notice will be shortened to at least 5 days before an
employee’s hours are reduced as a result of an unforeseen reduction in the student population.

Any vacancies for the following school term or within one calendar year from the beginning of the
following school term, shall be offered to the employees so removed or dismissed from that category
or any other category of position provided they are qualified to hold such positions.

Final Paycheck

A terminating employee’s final paycheck will be adjusted for any unused, earned vacation credit.
Employees are paid for all earned vacation. Terminating employees will receive their final pay on the
next regular payday following the date of termination, except that an employee dismissed due to a

5:290 Page 1 of 2
Adopted 03-18-13
Revised 01-19-16



reduction in force shall receive his or her final paycheck on or before the next regular pay date
following the last day of employment.

Suspension Without Pay

The School Board or Superintendent or designee is authorized to suspend an employee without pay as
a disciplinary measure for misconduct during an investigation into allegations of misconduct or
pending a dismissal hearing whenever, in the Board or Superintendent’s designee’s judgment, the
employees’ presence is detrimental to the District. Misconduct includes:

« Insubordination, including any failure to follow an oral or written directive from a supervisor;

« Violation of Board policy or Administrative Procedure;

« Conduct that disrupts or may disrupt the educational program or process; and other sufficient
causes.

A disciplinary suspension shall be with pay: (1) when the employee is exempt from overtime
provisions, or (2) until an employee with an employment contract for a definite term is provided a
notice and hearing.

Repayment of Compensation and Benefits

If an employee is suspended with pay, either voluntarily or involuntarily, pending the outcome of a
criminal investigation or prosecution, and the employee is later dismissed as a result of their criminal
conviction, the employee must repay to the District all compensation and the value of benefits
received by him or her during the suspension. The Superintendent will notify the employee of this
requirement when the employee is suspended.

LEGAL REF. 5 ILCS 430 et seq.
105 ILCS 5/10-22.34c and 5/10-23.5.
820 ILCS 105/4a.

CROSS REF.: 5:240 (Educational Support Personnel - Suspension), 5:270 (Educational Support
Personnel - Employment At-Will, Compensation, and Assignment)

5:290 Page 2 of 2
Adopted 03-18-13
Revised 01-19-16



Kenilworth School District No. 38 7:10

Students

Equal Educational Opportunities

Equal educational and extracurricular opportunities shall be available for all students without regard
to color, race, nationality, religion, sex, sexual orientation, ancestry, age, physical or mental
disability, gender identity, status of being homeless, immigration status, order of protection status,
actual or potential marital or parental status, including pregnancy. Further, the District will not
knowingly enter into agreements with any entity or any individual that discriminates against students
on the basis of sex or any other protected status, except that the District remains viewpoint neutral
when granting access to school facilities under School Board policy 8:20, Community Use of School
Facilities. Any student may file a discrimination grievance by using Board policy 2:260, Uniform
Grievance Procedure.

Sex Equity

No student shall, based on sex, sexual orientation, or gender identity be denied equal access to
programs, activities, services, or benefits or be limited in the exercise of any right, privilege,
advantage, or denied equal access to educational and extracurricular programs and activities.

Any student may file a sex equity complaint by using Board policy 2:260, Uniform Grievance
Procedure. A student may appeal the Board’s resolution of the complaint to the appropriate
Intermediate Service Center (pursuant to 105 ILCS 5/3-10) and, thereafter, to the State
Superintendent of Education (pursuant to 105 ILCS 5/2-3.8).

Administrative Implementation

The Superintendent shall appoint a Nondiscrimination Coordinator. The Superintendent and Building
Principal shall use reasonable measures to inform staff members and students of this policy and
grievance procedure.

LEGAL REF. 42 U.S.C. 811431 et seq., McKinney Homeless Assistance Act.
20 U.S.C. 81681 et seq., Title IX of the Education Amendments implemented y 34
C.F.R. Part 106.
29 U.S.C. 8791 et seq., Rehabilitation Act of 1973.
775 ILCS 35/5, Religious Freedom Restoration Act.
II. Constitution, Art. I, §18.
Good News Club v. Milford Central School, 121 S.Ct. 2093 (2001).
105 ILCS 5/3.25b, 3.25d(b), 10-20.12, 10-22.5, and 27-1.
775 1LCS 5/1-101 et seq., lllinois Human Rights Act.
23 lllLAdmin.Code §1.240 and Part 200.

CROSS REF-.: 2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 7:20 (Harassment of Students Prohibited),
7:50 (School Admissions and Student Transfers To and From Non-District
Schools), 7:60 (Residence), 7:180 (Prevention of and Responses to Bullying,
Intimidation and Harassment), 8:20 (Community Use of School Facilities)

7:10 Page 1 of 1
Adopted 06-18-12
Revised 01-19-16



Kenilworth School District No. 38 7:40

Students

Nonpublic School Students, Including Parochial and Home-Schooled Students

Part-Time Attendance

The District accepts nonpublic school students, including parochial and home-schooled students, who
live within the District for part-time attendance in the District’s regular education program on a
space-available basis. Requests for part-time attendance must be submitted to the Principal. All
requests for attendance in the following school year must be submitted before May 1.

A student accepted for partial enrollment must comply with all discipline and attendance
requirements established by the school. He or she may participate in any co-curricular activity
associated with a District class in which he or she is enrolled. The parent(s)/guardian(s) of a student
accepted for partial enrollment must pay all fees, pro-rated on the basis of a percentage of full-time
fees. Transportation is the responsibility of the parent(s)/guardian(s).

Students with a Disability

The District accepts for part-time attendance those children for whom it has been determined that
special education services are needed, are enrolled in nonpublic school, and otherwise qualify for
enrollment in the District. Requests must be submitted by the student’s parent/guardian. Special
educational services shall be provided to such students as soon as possible after identification,
evaluation, and placement procedures provided by State law, but no later than the beginning of the
next school semester following the completion of such procedures. Transportation for such students
shall be provided only if required in the child’s individualized educational program on the basis of the
child’s disabling condition or as the special education program location may require.

Assignment When Enrolling Full-Time in a District School

Grade placement by, and academic credits earned at, a nonpublic school will be accepted if the school
has a Certificate of Nonpublic School Recognition from the Illinois State Board of Education, or, if
outside Illinois, if the school is accredited by the state agency governing education.

A student who, after receiving instruction in a non-recognized or non-accredited school, enrolls in the
District will: (1) be assigned to a grade level according to academic proficiency, and/or (2) have
academic credits recognized by the District if the student demonstrates appropriate academic
proficiency to the school administration. Any portion of a student’s transcript relating to such
instruction will not be considered for placement on the honor roll or computation in class rank.

Notwithstanding the above, recognition of grade placement and academic credits awarded by a
nonpublic school is at the sole discretion of the District. All school and class assignments will be
made according to School Board policy 7:30, School Attendance Area and Student Class Assignment,
as well as administrative procedures implementing this policy.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-20.24 and 5/14-6.01.

CROSS REF-.: 4:110 (Transportation), 6:170 (Title |1 Programs), 7:30 (School Attendance Area
and Student Class Assignment),

7:40 Page 1 of 1
Adopted 09-24-12
Revised 01-19-16



Kenilworth School District No. 38 7:260

Students

Exemption from Physical Activity

In order to be excused from participation in physical education, a student must present an appropriate
excuse from his or her parent/guardian or from a person licensed under the Medical Practice Act. The
excuse may be based on medical or religious prohibitions. State law prohibits a school board from
honoring parental excuses based upon a student’s participation in athletic training, activities, or
competitions conducted outside the auspices of the School District.

Special activities in physical education will be provided for a student whose physical or emotional
condition, as determined by a person licensed under the Medical Practice Act, prevents his or her
participation in the physical education course.

A student requiring adapted physical education must receive that service in accordance with his or
her Individualized Educational Program/Plan (IEP).

A student who is eligible for special education may be excused from physical education courses in
either of the following situations:

1. He or she:

a) Isingrades 3-12,

b) His or her IEP requires that special education support and services be provided
during physical education time, and

c) The parent/guardian agrees or the IEP team makes the determination; or

a) Hasan IEP,
b) Is participating in an adaptive athletic program outside of the school setting, and

c) The parent/guardian documents the student’s participation as required by the
Superintendent or designee.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/27-6.
225 ILCS 60/, Medical Practice Act.
23 lll. Admin.Code §1.420(p).

CROSS REF-.: 6:60 (Curriculum Content)

7:260 Page 1 of 1
Adopted 11-12-12
Revised 01-19-16



Kenilworth School District No. 38 7:310

Students

Restrictions on Publications

School-Sponsored Publications and Web Sites

School-sponsored publications, productions, and web sites are part of the curriculum and are not a
public forum for general student use. School authorities may edit or delete material that is
inconsistent with the District’s educational mission.

All school-sponsored communications shall comply with the ethics and rules of responsible
journalism. Text that is libelous, obscene, vulgar, lewd, invades the privacy of others, conflicts with
the basic educational mission of the school, is socially inappropriate, is inappropriate due to the
maturity of the students, or is materially disruptive to the educational process will not be tolerated.

The author’s name will accompany personal opinions and editorial statements. An opportunity for
the expression of opinions differing from those published/produced will be provided within the same
media.

Non-School Sponsored Publications Accessed or Distributed On-Campus

For purposes of this section and the following section, a publication includes, without limitation: (1)
written or electronic print material, (2) audio-visual material on any medium including
electromagnetic media (e.g., images, MP3 files, flash memory, etc.), or combinations of these
whether off-line (e.g., a printed book, CD-ROM, etc.), or online (e.g., any website, social networking
site, database for information retrieval, etc., or (3) information or material on electronic devices (e.g.,
data or voice message delivered by cell phones, tablets, and other hand-held devices).

Creating, distributing and/or accessing non-school sponsored publications shall occur at a time and
place and in a manner that will not cause disruption, be coercive, or result in the perception that the
District endorses the distribution or the publication.

Students are prohibited from creating, distributing and/or accessing at school any publication that:

1. WIill cause substantial disruption of the proper and orderly operation and discipline of the
school or school activities;

2. Violates the rights of others, including but not limited to material that is libelous, invades the
privacy of others, or infringes on a copyright;

3. Is socially inappropriate or inappropriate due to maturity level of the students, including but
not limited to material that is obscene, pornographic, or pervasively lewd and vulgar, contains
indecent and vulgar language, or sexting as defined by School Board policy and Student
Handbooks;

4. Is reasonably viewed as promoting illegal drug use; or

Is distributed in kindergarten through eighth grade and is primarily prepared by non-students,
unless it is being used for school purposes. Nothing herein shall be interpreted to prevent the
inclusion of material from outside sources or the citation to such sources as long as the
material to be distributed or accessed is primarily prepared by students.

Accessing or distributing on-campus includes accessing or distributing on school property or at
school-related activities. A student engages in gross disobedience and misconduct and may be

7:310 Page 1 of 2
Adopted 11-12-12
Revised 01-19-16



disciplined for: (1) accessing or distributing forbidden material, or (2) for writing, creating, or
publishing such material intending for it to be accessed or distributed at school.

Non-School Sponsored Publications Accessed or Distributed Off-Campus

A student engages in gross disobedience and misconduct and may be disciplined for creating and/or
distributing off campus a publication that: (1) causes a substantial disruption or a foreseeable risk of a
substantial disruption to school operations, or (2) interferes with the rights of other students or staff
members.

Bullying and Cyberbullying

The Superintendent or designee shall treat behavior that is bullying and/or cyberbullying according to
Board policy 7:180, Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment, in
addition to any response required by this policy.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/27-23.7
Hazelwood v. Kuhlmeier, 108 S.Ct. 562 (1988).
Hedges v. Wauconda Community Unit School Dist. No. 118, 9 F.3d 1295 (7th Cir.
1993).
Tinker v. Des Moines Indep. Cmty. Sch. Dist., 89 S.Ct. 733 (1969).

CROSS REF-.: 6:235 (Access to Electronic Networks), 7:180 (Preventing Bullying, Intimidation,
and Harassment), 8:25 (Advertising and Distributing Materials in School
Provided by Non-School Related Entities)

7:310 Page 2 of 2
Adopted 11-12-12
Revised 01-19-16



Kenilworth School District No. 38 7:325

Students

Student Fundraising Activities

No individual or organization is allowed to ask students to participate in fundraising activities while
the students are on school grounds during school hours or during any school activity. Exceptions are:

1. School-sponsored student organizations; and

2. Parent organizations and booster clubs that are recognized pursuant to policy 8:90, Parent
Organizations and Booster Clubs.

The Superintendent or designee shall manage student fundraising activities in alignment with the
following directives:

1. Fundraising efforts shall not conflict with instructional activities or programs.

3.2. Fundraising efforts must be voluntary.

4.3. Student safety must be paramount. Door-to-door solicitations are only allowed as related to
the 8" Grade Play ticket sales with two or more students working in teams under adult
supervision.

5.4.For school-sponsored student organizations, a school staff member must supervise the
fundraising activities and the student activity funds treasurer must safeguard the financial
accounts.

6:5. The fundraising efforts must be to support the organization’s purposes and/or activities, the
general welfare, a charitable cause, or the educational experiences of students generally.

4-6. The funds shall be used to the maximum extent possible for the designated purpose.

8.7. Any fundraising efforts that solicit donor messages for incorporation into school property
(e.g., tiles or bricks) or placement upon school property (e.g., posters or placards) must:

a. Develop viewpoint neutral guidelines for the creation of messages;

b. Inform potential donors that all messages are subject to review and approval, and that
messages that do not meet the established guidelines must be resubmitted or the
donation will be returned; and

c. Place a disclaimer on all fundraising information and near the completed donor
messages that all messages are “solely the expression of the individual donors and
not an endorsement by the District of any message’s content.”

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-20.19(3).
23 Ill.Admin. Code Part 305, School Food Service

CROSS REF-.: 4:90 (Activity Funds), 8:80 (Gifts to the District), 8:90 (Parent Organizations and
Booster Clubs)

7:325 Page 1 of 1
Adopted 11-12-12
Revised 01-19-16



Kenilworth School District No. 38 8:80

Community Relations

Gifts to the District

The District welcomes donations of money, equipment, or materials from education foundations, other
entities, or individuals, provided that the donor does not require that the gift be applied to a stated
purpose, and provided alsoe-that the Board or school official authorized to accept the gift deems it to be
compatible with the Board’s educational policies and objectives. Donations less than $500.00 in value,
may be accepted by the Superintendent or designee. Non-monetary or in-kind gifts must receive prior
approval of the Superintendent.

All gifts must be consistent with the District’s mandate to provide equal educational and extracurricular
opportunities to all students in the District as provided in Board policy 7:10, Equal Educational
Opportunities. State and federal laws require the District to provide equal opportunities treatment for
members of both sexes to educational programing, extracurricular activities, and athletics.

The Superintendent or designee shall manage a process for the review and approval of donations
involving the incorporation of messages into or placing messages upon school property. Donors’
messages incorporated into or placed upon school property shall be view point neutral and accompanied
by a disclaimer stating that the messages are the personal expressions of individual donors and do not
represent the views of the District.

Approval by the Board-ef EducationDistrict’s designated authority must be obtained before beginning a
fund-raising campaign or collection for any donations including specific projects or programs.
Individuals sheuld-must obtain a pre-acceptance commitment before identifying the District, any school,
or school program or activity as a beneficiary in any fundraising attempt, including without limitation,
any internet fundraising attempt.

All gifts received become the District’s property. In all cases final discretion as to the acceptance and
application of gifts will rest with the Superintendent and the Board of Education. The acceptance of a gift
is not an endorsement by the Board, District, or school of any product, service, activity, or program. All
gifts must comply with all laws applicable to the District including, but not limited to, the Americans
with Disabilities Act, the Prevailing Wage Act, the Health/Life Safety Code for Public Schools, and all
applicable procurement and bidding requirements.

Additional Parameters

e Recognition opportunities associated with donations to the Joseph Sears School Foundation (JSS
Foundation) brick naming program, the Library Technology Center book naming program and for
gifts of exceptional generosity which enable significant or unique enhancements of The Joseph Sears
School educational programs or facilities will be considered upon the discretion of the
Superintendent and Board of Education.

o Donors will be encouraged to work through organizations associated with the District, including but
not limited to the JSS Foundation, Sears School Booster Club, and the Joseph Sears School Parents’

8:80 Page 1 of 2
Adopted 04/20/09
Revised 02-09-15
Revised 01-19-16



Volunteer Association (JSSPVA). Recognition of donations for established District groups may
include a small permanent plaque with the organization’s name attached to the gift. Individuals who
prefer to make contributions independently of an organization associated with the District are invited
to discuss their proposal with the Superintendent.

o District employees shall not solicit donations from vendors with whom they may enter into contracts.

Namin

The Board of Education reserves the right to name buildings, programs, parts of buildings, or outdoor
facilities in honor of an employee who has rendered exceptional service to Kenilworth District No. 38.

Advertising

For-profit entities may not advertise on School District property in any manner, except with prior
approval of the Superintendent and the Board of Education in each instance.

Tribute and Memorial Gifts

Tribute and memorial gifts in honor of Sears School students, faculty, staff, alumni, retirees or friends of
the School are encouraged to be made to established school groups or programs.

LEGAL REF.: 20 U.S.C. 81681 et seq., Title IX of the Education Amendments implemented by
34 C.F.R. Part 106.
105 ILCS 5/16-1.
23 Ill.Admin.Code §200.40.

CROSS REF.: 4:60 (Purchases and Contracts), 4:150 (Facility Management and Building
Programs), 6:210 (Instructional Materials), 7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities)

8:80 Page 2 of 2
Adopted 04/20/09
Revised 02-09-15
Revised 01-19-16



Legal Commentary/Rationale for Legal Edits on Policy Revisions
Presented 12-14-15

2:160 School Board — School Board Attorney

“...Proposed revised policies are in good order”. ~~ H. Katz

2:260 School Board — Uniform Grievance Procedure

“The District’s proposed revisions are in red; our suggestions are in green.

The Complaint Manager will first attempt to resolve complaints without resorting to this grievance

procedure and;. H-If a fermal-complaint is filed, to-under this procedure, the Complaint Manager will
address the complaint promptly and equitably. A student and/or parent/guardian filing a complaint
under this procedure may forego any informal suggestions and/or attempts to resolve it and may
proceed directly to the grievance procedure. The Complaint Manager will not require a student or
parent/quardian_complaining of any form of harassment, discrimination, bullying or misconduct to

attempt to resolve allegations directly with the accused (or the accused’s parents/quardians); this includes
mediation. . ..

e We suggest striking “formal” because the District may have a legal obligation to respond
to and investigate “informal” complaints if the complaining person states that the concern
is being brought pursuant to this policy.

e The proposed revisions identify “harassment” as a complaint about which the Complaint
Manager will not require a student or parent/guardian to first attempt to resolve directly
with the accused. We suggest that there may be other situations, e.g. “bullying or
misconduct”, in which the Complaint Manager might not feel it appropriate to require the
student or family to first address the matter with the accused. Alternatively, more flexible
language might be to replace the proposed language with, “In certain circumstances,
depending on the seriousness of the complained of conduct and other factors, the
Complaint Manage will not require a student or parent/guardian to attempt to resolve
allegations directly with the accused. . . .” ~~ R. Lutner

“Ms. Lutner, Forgive me | am not clear regarding your direction on 2:260 in your second bullet point

regarding alternate more “flexible” language being used. (Highlighted in the email message below). Did
you mean,

In certain circumstances, depending on the seriousness of the complaint of conduct and other factors,
the Complaint Manager will not require a student or parent/quardian complaining of any form of
harassment, discrimination, bullying or misconduct, to attempt to resolve allegations directly with the
accused (or the accused’s parents/guardians); this includes mediation. . . .

Thank you for your further clarification” ~~ J. Campanaro

Page 1 of 5



“Hi Julie. In the language which you put into yellow highlight (below), we suggest you change
“complaint of conduct”, to “complained of conduct.” ~~ R. Lutner

4:50 Operational Services — Payment Procedures
“...Proposed revised policies are in good order.” ~~ H. Katz
5:50 Personnel - Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace

“The proposed revisions to this policy are acceptable and do not raise any legal issues”. ~~ R.
Lutner

5:170 General Personnel — Copyright

“Whether the Board should amend 5:170 to designate a “Digital Millennium Copyright Act
[“DCMA”] Agent” depends upon whether District 38 is — or should assume that it is — an online
service provider for purposes of the DCMA. This Act amended the U.S. copyright law in 1998
with provisions including a Section 512 (“Limitation on liability relating to material

online”). Under this provision, an “online service provider” (OSP) which complies with certain
conditions will not be held legally responsible for alleged infringements of copyrights by users of
its networks.

This is useful protection to have, if you are an OSP. The problem is, it’s not clear how broadly
the term “online service provider” should be interpreted for purposes of understanding what
entities are entitled to that protection. Some schools host their own network services (example:
email networks at college campuses). However, many obtain their Internet services from
telecommunications or cable companies (Verizon, Comcast, etc.) For purposes of Section
512(c), a “service provider” is defined as a “provider of online services or network access, or the
operator of facilities” for online services or network access, including “an entity offering the
transmission, routing, or providing of connections for digital online communications, between or
among points specified by a user, of material of the user’s choosing, without modification to the
content of the material as sent or received.” (Emphasis added). In other words, if the network
operates in a neutral fashion, without manipulation or control by the OSP. (Note that the
copyright law’s definition of OSP is broader than the term “Internet Service Provider” as used in
telecommunications law. In the copyright law, an OSP is any entity that provides digital online
communication service, including one that offers public access computing.)

A district which operates its own network services (such as an email network), or which
contracts with a telecommunications or cable company for Internet services to make available to
the public, may be best advised to assume that it qualifies as an OSP, in order to benefit from
Section 512’s “safe harbor” from liability for copyright infringements by its users. An OSP will
not be held liable for injunctive relief, money damages, or infringement of copyright if, when it
is contacted by a copyright holder who claims that infringing content has been found on the

Page 2 of 5



OSP’s network, the OSP promptly removes the content. However, this protection is only
available to OSPs which designate an agent to receive reports of infringement. The purpose of
designating a DCMA agent is to facilitate and centralize such contacts, so that rights holders
know who to contact to report alleged infringements. The designated DCMA agent is the
individual who receives “takedown” notices from infringement claimants. He or she does not
have to be an attorney; the District’s IT manager or an administrator could serve in that capacity.

A school district which is or decides to assume that it is an OSP must post the name, street and
email addresses, and phone and fax numbers of its DCMA Agent in a publicly accessible place
on its website, and must submit this information to the U.S. Copyright Office to become part of
the Copyright Office’s directory of DCMA agents. As indicated on accompanying proposed
5:170-AP4, the Copyright Office has posted a form and procedures for this filing, which also
entails payment of an $80 fee. We can assist you in completing this process, if desired.

Whether or not the District decides to identify and register a DCMA agent, it should include
information on its website and in its acceptable use guidelines notifying users that they may
not upload content which infringes copyright. It should also have them affirmatively verify that
they are not doing so whenever they upload content while using District computer services.”
~~ H. Katz

5:270 Educational Support Personnel - Employment At-Will Compensation and Assignment

“The only addition I recommend is the use of policies’ complete titles when cross-referencing to
ensure clarity and avoid any argument that the ESP policies apply to certified employees. A
redline is attached for your review.” ~~ A. Tiebert Coleman

5:290 Educational Support Personnel - Employment Termination and Suspensions
“I have a few recommended revisions for consideration.

First, under “Non-RIF Dismissal,” we recommend that districts omit the phrase “are employed
annually or have a contract” in the definition of “legitimate expectation of continued
employment” because that term is a legal term defined by case law. By including the additional
language in the Policy, we’re hindering the District and tying its hands should it wish to argue
that someone who is employed annually is in fact an at-will employee.

Second, with respect to “Reduction in Force and Recall,” I have updated the notice requirements
to ensure consistency with Section 5/10-23.5 of the School Code. In particular, the Code
requires that notice be provided via regular mail and either certified mail or personal delivery
with receipt.

Regarding “Suspension without Pay,” I recommend including the additional suspension options
from PRESS to allow the District to consider those options when facing a lengthy investigation

Page 3 of 5



or dismissal hearing. The sentence after the bullet points is recommended to remind
administrators of the limits to their use of a suspension without pay.

Finally, I have revised the section on reimbursement of compensation and benefits to make it
consistent with the Illinois statute governing this issue. The PRESS policy is not quite consistent
with the statute because the employee must be on pay pending the outcome of the criminal
matter and dismissed as a result of a criminal conviction for the repayment obligation to arise.”
~~ A. Tiebert Coleman

7:10 Students — Equal Educational Opportunities

“I have reviewed the District’s proposed amendments to Board Policy 7:10, Equal Educational
Opportunities, and believe they are appropriate. Therefore, please feel free to adopt the revised
policy as drafted”. ~~ M. Brotine

7:40 Students — Nonpublic School Students, Including Parochial and Home-Schooled Students

“No changes are required. Regarding the paragraph titled “Extracurricular Activities, Including
Interscholastic Competition”, we note that the Board of Education mayj, if it chooses, decline to
permit nonpublic school students to participate in such activities. If the Board decides to change
current policy in that regard, cross-references to Policies 6:190 and 7:300 should be deleted.”
~~ H. Katz

7:260 Students — Exemption from Physical Activity
“This policy as proposed to be revised is in good order.” ~~ H. Katz
7:310 Students - Restrictions on Publications

“On page 2 of 7:310, in the second line of the paragraph titled “Non-School Sponsored
Publications Accessed or Distributed Off-Campus”, it would be consistent with the title to insert
“off-campus” after “distributing”.

Also, we strongly concur in the PRESS Policy drafters’ footnote 11 to the latest iteration of this
policy, which cautions school officials to “proceed carefully before disciplining a student for out-
of-school conduct. A school’s authority over off-campus expression is much more limited than
expression on school grounds. Many decisions address the tension between public schools’
authority to discipline students for off-campus speech and students’ right to free speech.”

This continues to be particularly true as regards off-campus cyber misconduct which does not
involve the use of school technology. Although the courts appear to be increasingly sensitive to
the damage which off-campus bullying on social media or personal electric devices can have on
the school environment, their decisions sometimes uphold and sometimes invalidate school
discipline measures, depending on the particular circumstances. We also encourage consulting
the board attorney for guidance when cases of this type arise, for as the PRESS footnote

Page 4 of 5



correctly states, ““...every situation is fact specific and the issues require careful evaluation.”
~~ H. Katz

7:325 Students — Student Fundraising

“In the first sentence of the second full paragraph, insert correct spelling for

“fundraising”. Otherwise, the policy is in good order. Note that “charitable cause” fundraising
activities have occasionally become controversial when the benefitted cause is a favorite of one
of the adult sponsors, particularly if conflict of interest concerns are present.” ~~ H. Katz

8:80 Community Relations — Gifts to the District

Regarding Julie’s question in her 10/30/2015 email transmittal of this policy, as to whether the
current paragraph format needs to be converted to a numerical format: the policy is brief
enough, and has enough subheadings, so that a numbering of paragraph may not be necessary —
although it might help the reader follow along and more easily identify policy provisions of
particular relevance to his or her concerns.

The first sentence might clearer if worded along these lines: “The District welcomes donations
of money, equipment, or materials from education foundations, other entities, or individuals,
provided that the donor does not require that the gift be applied to a stated purpose, and provided
also that the Board or school official authorized to accept the gift deems it to be compatible with
the Board’s educational policies and objectives.”

In the second paragraph, second sentence, I would substitute the word “opportunities for
“treatment” in line three, and delete the third sentence which essentially reiterates the point made
in the second sentence.

In the fifth paragraph, we recommend deleting the first sentence, as potentially inviting
complaints of inequal treatment by would-be donors whose offered contributions are declined for
one valid reason or another. In the last sentence of the fifth paragraph, we suggest substituting
“including but not limited to” for “including, without limitation”, and placing the period after
“bidding requirements” (deleting “and Illinois law”), since the sentence has already made clear
that the federal and state statutes cited are not an exhaustive list of applicable laws.

On the second page, I’d recommend rewording the last sentence of the first full bullet point to
read, “Individuals who prefer to make contributions independently of an organization associated
with the District are invited to discuss their proposal with the Superintendent.”

Regarding advertising, it might be preferable to state, “For-profit entities may not advertise on
School District property in any manner, except with prior approval of the Superintendent and the
Board of Education in each instance.” ~~ H. Katz

Page 5 of 5



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38

To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

From: Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official
Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal
Ms. Julia Jones, Director of Student Services

Date: January 19, 2016

Re:  Administrative Leadership Structure

The Kenilworth Board of Education outlined a flat administrative structure for the 2015-
2016 school year in the spirit of fostering collaboration between administrators and
efficiency within the organization. As an Administrative Leadership Team, we feel the
flat administrative structure has allowed us to learn more about each other’s leadership
styles through close collaboration and discussion.

While the flat administrative structure proved helpful in some regards, it has proved to
be a hindrance in others. We feel that collaborating on too many issues has the
inadvertently inhibited the decision making process. We each have our own strengths
and perspectives to bring to a given issue. In a flat administrative structure, it can often
times be difficult to lead without one person focusing solely on the bigger picture and
the best interests of the District as a whole.

We feel a more traditional administrative structure would allow for more clear
articulation of the roles and responsibilities of each administrator. It would also grant
the superintendent authority to exercise autocratic decision making with the district’s
short- and long-term interests in mind. Finally, we feel that having a single decision
maker would allow for better facilitation of a single vision for the District, help define
administrative responsibilities and make for a more intuitive leadership team.

We fully believe that a more hierarchical structure will not prohibit collaboration among
us as administrators. We hope that the Board endorses our recommendation to transition
back to a more traditional administrative structure going forward.

DR.CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL MSs. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES

542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043 phone: 847.256.5006 fax: 847.256.4418 www kenilworth38.org



	Agenda 011916
	FOIA Requests 011916
	Superintendent's Report 011916
	Superintendent Report 011916
	2016-2017 School Year Calendar Draft 011916

	CSBO Report - 011916
	Enrollment Report 2015-2016 011916
	Minutes 12-14-15 (Open Session)
	Accounts Payable December to January 011916
	Summary Accounts Payable December 15th to January 19th 2016 A-P Date
	Check Listing

	December 2015 Monthly Financials 011916
	December Investment Reports 011916
	Investment Certification Statement CL - 15-16 - November-2
	ISDLAF- December 2015 December 2015

	2 160 School Board- Board Attorney Revised 01-19-16
	2 260 School Board - Uniform Grievance Procedure Proposed Revised 01-19-16
	4 50 Operational Services - Payment Procedures Revised 01-19-16
	5 50 GENERAL PERSONNEL - Drug-and Alcohol-Free Workplace Revised 01-19-16
	5 170 AP4 Designation of Digital Millennium Copyright Act (DMCA) Agent Registration Process Adopted 01-19-16
	5 170 AP4 Designation of Digital Millennium Copyright Act (DMCA) Agent Registration Process Adopted 01-19-16
	5 170 Copyright Revised 01-19-16
	5 270 EDUCATIONAL SUPPORT PERSONNEL - Employment At-Will Compensation and Assignment - Revised 01-19-16
	5 290 EDUCATIONAL SUPPORT PERSONNEL - Employment Termination and Suspensions Revised 01-19-16 
	7 10 Students - Equal Educational Opportunities Revised 01-19-16
	7 40 Students - Nonpublic School Students Including Parochial and Home-Schooled Students Revised 01-19-16 
	7 260 Students - Exemption from Physical Activity Revised 01-19-16
	7 310 Students - Restrictions on Publications Revised 01-19-16
	7 325 Students - Student Fundraising Activities Revised 01-19-16
	8 80 Community Relations - Gifts to the District  Revised 01-19-16
	Legal Commentary on Policy Revisions Presented 12-14-15
	Administrative Structure Memo 011916

